ANNUAL REPORT

MULLALOO SURF LIFE SAVING CLUB | 2021/22

100

2

ET.

12

2

97

Ť



e 1.

ullaloo

A \

RS

6

MULLALOO SNAPSHOT STATISTICS FOR 2021/22



CONTENTS

Mullaloo Snapshot Statistics	2
Club Officers	4
Club, SLSWA and SLSA Awards	6
Welcome New Life Members	10
President's Report	12
Board Report	15
OPERATIONS	17
Lifesaving Services	18
Education	21
DEVELOPMENT & NIPPERS	27
U6 & U7 Nipper Manager	31
Woodside Nipper Awards	41
Youth	43
Membership	46
Accessibility and Inclusion	48
SURF SPORTS	51
Surf Sports Events	52
Coaching Services	53
Competition	54
Youth & Senior Surf Sports Awards	57
MARKETING	62
Sponsorship	65
Mullaloo Surf Shop	67
Social Activities	68
FACILITIES	70
FINANCIALS	71
Finance Report	72

CLUB OFFICERS

For the 2021/22 Season

BOARD

President **Craig Bull** Director/Deputy President Sandy Clarke

Director **Chrissie Payne**

Director Jacqui McGregor

Director **Guy Edwards**

Director **Carly Ferguson**

CLUB STAFF

Administration Officer **Natalie Mews** Maria Pascoe

Marketing Officer **Simon Spencer**

Accounts Officer

Philippa Taylor

Bar Manager **Rob McGregor**

GENERAL MANAGERS

Development Tanya Honor/Sandy Clarke

Facilities Cindy de Bomford/ Chrissie Payne / Jacqui McGregor

Marketing Simone Truter / Chrissie Payne

Operations Vacant Surf Sports

Cameron Rapley

MANAGERS

Accessibility and Inclusion A/Sandy Clarke & Jacqui McGregor

Coaching **Troy Baird**

Competition **Dawn** Jones

Education **Bernadette Flint**

SLSWA – Surf Life Saving Western Australia SLSA – Surf Life Saving Australia

Surf Sports Events **Julie Rapley**

Finance John Hillen

Nipper Development A/Sandy Clarke & Jacqui McGregor

Lifesaving Services

Nick lellamo

Membership **Guv Edwards**

Retail Annika Crockford

Youth Development **Emma Bamforth**

Social Vacant

Sponsorship **Brenda Campbell**

PATROL CAPTAINS

Bells Patrol Brett Warner

Billabong Patrol Ellie Black

Bondi Patrol **Paul Copland** Kirra Patrol

Ava Bushby

Malibu Patrol **Mark Hills**

McCarthy Patrol Phill Dee

Redgate Patrol **Liam Rogers**

Torquay Patrol Terry Upston

Uluwatu Patrol Nick lellamo

Whitehaven Patrol **Michael Stone**

Wiamea Patrol **Christie Watt**

Cable Water Safety Patrol Coordinator **Peggy Bakalis**

ADDITIONAL ROLES

First Aid Officer **Natalie Godwin** Gear Officers

Paul Barrett Trevor Bulley David Chadderton

Member Protection Information Officer **Guy Edwards**

CLUB MEMBERS HOLDING POSITIONS WITH SLSWA

Development Committee Tanya Honor

Event Safety Officers **Mark Hills**

Jacqui McGregor

Honours and Awards Committee **Tracey Tenaglia**

WA Surf Boat Panel (Chair) Stuart Clarke

HONORARY **APPOINTMENTS**

Patron

His Worship, The Mayor **City of Joondalup** The Hon. Albert Jacob JP

Vice Patrons

Ian Goodenough MP **Caitlin Collins MLA**

Auditor **Charter Financial Services**

Mullaloo Surf Life Saving Club Annual Report 2021/22. © Mullaloo Surf Life Saving Club, 2022.

4 MULLALOO SLSC 2021/22 ANNUAL REPORT

Cameron Rapley

Club Person of the Year | 2021/22

The Club person of the Year recognises a Club member who has strived above and beyond the normal call of duty as a volunteer during the year to the great benefit of the Club and its members.

Knowing Cameron well, he is not one to want to be in the spotlight. He is not one to seek attention of accolades but this is one award all who know Cameron will recognise as being well deserved.

Where do you start? Joining the Club in 2013, Cameron has done so much from the first day he and his family joined, and it has all been done ever since with great passion and commitment that has contributed to the success our Club. Cameron puts our members and our Club first before anything, anyone, or himself. He epitomises what our Club values are all about.

So, what made this year a little different? This year was more about the culmination of the past year's efforts:

He is one of our GM's – Surf Sports, not only did we have another great year in the sports area, Cameron ensured all our sports pillars and other pillars within them worked more closely together.

Coach of IRB Racing. Cameron has helped the team achieve

ultimate success as the State IRB Champion Club of the Year, five years in a row. More importantly, provided pathways for these members into supporting the



Club in multiple other ways including many of our youth.

Co-ordinated and assisted in the organisation and set up of multiple carnivals and external events with the assistance of many of our Club members who all volunteered their valuable time.

Mentored so many younger members in the development of their work careers and personal lives. Cameron has spent many hours talking and guiding them in life. He should be so proud of their successes. He has built long term friendships with so many of them.

The list goes on but to conclude, Cameron invested with passion and commitment so much into our Club in 2022 and is an extremely deserving winner of the 2021/22 Club Person of the Year.

Cindy de Bomford

President's Award | 2021/22

As a Club, we try to recognise our Club members for their outstanding achievements and contribution to our success. But sometimes, people fly under the radar.

Each year, the Club President has the opportunity to award someone who has gone above and beyond. This year the Presidents Award was awarded to Cindy de Bomford.

Cindy has made an outstanding contribution to our Club not only 2022, but for many years doing the things that no one always sees. It would be fair to say, many of our members may not even know who Cindy is.

Cindy joined our Club in 2008. It is Cindy's quiet achievements that have made the largest impact across so many different areas of our Club over many years.

So what has made Cindy a really special member of our Club this year?

Let's start with the Club facilities we enjoy every week. Cindy over the past number of years as Club's Facilities Manager, has done an exceptional job of making our facilities so wonderful.

Covid continued to challenge society in 2022 but I am not sure if our members realise the work to meet government requirements behind the scenes that was required to be done. The compliance and regulations were forever changing. Cindy led the processes in managing the changes and keeping our members safe.



Then came all the functions that our Club holds both for members and when the facility is hired out. Who is front and centre ensuring it all runs smoothly – Cindy.

Who would think that sorting out the Club cleaning would be worthy of mention? This is something we all take for granted, that just happens. In this period of Covid, the cleaning of this building has gone to another level and finding a contractor that would not only do the task, but do it properly has created a lot of angst. Cindy de Bomford with the help of **Chrissie Payne** have had many a sleepless night on how and if our Club was going to be cleaned properly. They have done a wonderful job.

The list of the thankless tasks completed by Cindy goes on but you get the picture of Cindy and her commitment in 2022 was above and beyond.

Cindy, as President I thank you for your commitment and passion to the Mullaloo Surf Life Saving Club.

CLUB, SLSWA AND SLSA AWARDS

For the 2021/22 Season – Additional Surf Sports, Education, Lifesaving and Nipper awards in reports

SLSWA AWARDS OF EXCELLENCE

~ WINNERS ~

Age Group Manager of the Year Louis Cheeseman

Trainer of the Year Sandy Clarke

Woodside Nippers Club of the Year **Mullaloo SLSC**

~ FINALISTS ~

Assessor of the Year **Guy Edwards**

Coach of the Year Stuart Clarke

Surf Lifesaver of the Year **Peggy Bakalis**

Official of the Year **Vicki Rasmussen**

Trainer of the Year

Guy Edwards

Woodside Nippers Program Volunteer of the Year

Brett Warner

Young Volunteer of the Year **Ava Bushby**

Youth Surf Lifesaver of the Year **Ava Bushby**

MULLALOO SLSC ANNUAL AWARDS

Nipper Activities Volunteer of the Year Brett Warner

Administrator of the Year **Cindy de Bomford**

Education Trainer of the Year **Sandy Clarke**

Young Education Trainer of the Year

Ayden Bartle Education Assessor of the Year Guy Edwards

Competition Official of the Year Marni Black

Coach of the Year Troy Baird

Team of the Year

Open Female Surf Team: Soraya Lee, Jenna Stummer, Katie Waddell, Rosie Wilson

Young Athlete of the Year **Eoghan Barraclough**

Athlete of the Year Jenna Stummer

IRB Lifesaver of the Year Jacqui McGregor

Young Lifesaver of the Year **Ethan Rapley**

Lifesaver of the Year **Ava Bushby**

PATROL OF THE YEAR Patrol Captain Ava Bushby Vice Captain Ellie Black **IRB** Driver **Roger Gregson** IRB Driver Jacqui McGregor IRB Crew **Jamie Gilbert IRB** Crew **Andre Villemin** ART **Helen O'Brien** ART **Rebecca O'Malley** First Aid **Natalie Godwin** First Aid **Karen Pahlow** Bronze **Ayden Bartle David Chadderton** Bronze **Alistair Cook** Bronze Bronze **Steve Dargie** Bronze **Phil Dee** Bronze **Neil Forbes** Bronze **Jessica Thorne** Bronze **Ethan Rapley** Bronze **Liam Rogers** Bronze **Michael Stone** Bronze **Carlo Tenaglia** SRC **Liam Harris** SRC **Anthony O'Brien**

Young Achiever of the Year Jade Bamforth

President's Award Cindy de Bomford

Club Person of the Year **Cameron Rapley**

SLSWA NIPPER & YOUTH AWARDS

(presentations still pending, event in October 2022)

Nipper Club Achiever of the Year **Finn Barrett**

Youth Club Achiever of the Year Jade Bamforth

U12 Surf Sports Age Champion of the Year **Oliver Browne**

30 YEAR LONG SERVICE AWARD

Horst Eisenblatter Gordon Roberts Darryl Turner Eckhard Widermanski

MARK HILLS

SURF LIFE SAVING WA – LIFE MEMBER

As a member of Mullaloo Surf Life Saving Club, Mark has been involved in Surf Life Saving for 29 years and has had a significant impact on education and training in Western Australia.

Mark served as the North Metropolitan Training Consultant for eight years, assisting Clubs in that region on all training and assessing matters. During that time, he worked collaboratively with other regions and SLSWA to ensure the consistency and development of training and assessing techniques across the state.

As an acknowledgement of the respect Mark has in the Education and Training area he is a three-time winner of the SLSWA Assessor of the Year Award. Being proficient in a variety of specialised awards Mark remains a sought-after facilitator and trainer mentor.

On top of his involvement in education and training, Mark sat on the Surf Life Saving WA Lifesaving Advisory Committee for six years, four of those as Chair. He has also



played an important role in surf sports in WA, having been the Emergency Safety Officer at State Championships since 2011.

Congratulations Mark, who was formally inducted as a Life Member of Surf Life Saving Western Australia at the 2022 SLSWA Awards of Excellence.

NICK IELLAMO



NATIONAL MEDAL RECIPIENTS

The National Medal was established by the Commonwealth of Australia in 1975 as one of the original elements of the distinctive Australian system of honours and awards. The medal recognises long service in organisations that protect life and property at some risk to their members. To be eligible. volunteers must be proficient with a minimum of 30 patrol hours (excludes water safety) each season for a minimum period of 15 full seasons.

At the time of attainment, **Carlo Tenaglia** had almost 1,000 patrol hours clocked and **Nick lellamo** not far behind with almost 850! Congratulations to you both on being awarded this National recognition.

CARLO TENAGLIA





40 Years STEVE DARGIE



25 Years MARK HILLS

NATIONAL PATROL SERVICE

In our 60th year of patrol service – Life Member **Steve Dargie** has been recognised for his patrolling contribution with a 40 year Patrol Service Award, that's two thirds of the Club's historic service right there! Congratulations to fellow patrolling members **Mark Hills, Greg Kelleher** and **Tony Greenfield** on receiving your respective National Patrol Service awards.



25 Years GREG KELLEHER



20 Years TONY GREENFIELD

SLSA MERITORIOUS AWARD - GROUP COMMENDATION FOR BRAVERY

Huge congratulations to these legends of the Surf and being recognised with an SLSA Meritorious Award - Group Commendation for Bravery, for their efforts in the response and rescue of multiple casualties who were caught in a rip at Mullaloo on the morning of July 2021.

Jeff Vidler, Dale Gration, Jeff Baker, Amanda Lee, Tracey Bartlett, Brenton Rose, Jennifer Orme, Richard Orme, Richard Stephenson, Phill Dee, Katrina West, Jenni Wood.



ILS – CITATION OF MERIT

The International Life Saving Federation – Citation of Merit recognises a person or organisation which has contributed to the furtherance of Lifesaving at State, National and Global levels.

Sandy's international contribution encompassed the annual Mullaloo Bali Education Training Tour and

international events.



SANDY CLARKE

Additionally, Sandy was recognised by SLSA as the 2018 National Volunteer of the Year. Sandy's contribution to Surf Lifesaving is both impressive and remains ongoing.

OFFICIATING SERVICE



20 Years GUY EDWARDS



25 Years ALISON GERRARD

Absolutely awesome volunteer contribution spanning over many years to the Club, Surf Sports and the movement!



SUNSET CELEBRATIONS

On Saturday 22nd October a celebratory party was held to commemorate our 60th Anniversary.

The sell-out event marked the milestone of 60 successful years of our contributions to community safety, building family connections and service to others by our members, resulting in a memorable moment in our Club's proud history.

The Club has never looked better, sparkling in a silver and candlelight glow and our beach also performed to perfection at sunset.

The informal Cocktail Party format allowed guests to mingle, share reminiscences and enjoy delicious finger food, live music and the buzz outside on the seaside balcony. A slideshow of people and events from the Club's history was a great conversation starter, sparking many memories.

It was wonderful to see so many of our Life Members in attendance, sharing stories of the formative years of the Club and it was particularly inspiring to see **Jeff Davidson** in attendance.

Our party planners extraordinaire, **Cindy de Bomford**, **Tracy Cox** and **Penny Fortmann** along with an amazing band of volunteers created an unforgettable experience for all.

FOUNDING MEMBERS

Aligned with the finish of the Ted Scott Marathon, the Club held a significant commemorative celebration for all members of the foundation of the Club in 1961.

Invited guests included our Life Members, past Presidents, current Management, our Patron Mayor Albert Jacobs, Caitlin Collins, MLA for Hillarys, Kay Langford, daughter of founding member Ted Scott, and founding member Margaret Cockman.

The Club was initially founded to commemorate local identity **Jack Hastings** whose untimely death affected many. Our two Club life saving reels each have a memorial plaque affixed, dedicated to **Jack Hastings** and **Tony Martin**, foundation Club President. A plaque was unveiled, which is now displayed in the Club's entrance hallway, to commemorate those

"who had the foresight to establish a surf life saving Club in October 1961 to provide surf rescue and water safety services to the local community."

Since those early days, our Club has grown in strength and now numbers 2,300 members.

We hope that those who pioneered the advent of our great Club would be very proud of the success of the Club and the opportunities for life that members enjoy, as well as appreciating the devotion to community service that they provide every year on our beach.

Celebrations were rounded off with a free sausage sizzle for all members, thanks to the mighty efforts of our sausage maestros, **Mike Gigney** and **Mike Fort** who coordinated the cooking of 1,000 sausages on the day.



Left to right: Craig Bull, Caitlin Collins MLA, Margaret Cockman, Mayor The Hon. Albert Jacob JP



MULLALOO SLSC 2021/22 ANNUAL REPORT

WELCOME NEW LIFE MEMBERS



SANDY CLARKE

NEW LIFE MEMBER

To condense Sandy's activities in Surf Life Saving is going to be a challenge.

Sandy joined the movement over 20 years ago and obtained her Bronze Medallion in 2001

at Sorrento SLSC. She transferred to Mullaloo in the 2004/05 season committing to becoming an Age Group Manager, patrolling member and competitor.

From that season, Sandy's input to Mullaloo has been nothing short of outstanding. The Energiser bunny has nothing on her. Her passion is outstanding.

Sandy's efforts include officiating, competing, training and assessing, Age Group Manager, patrol member, Club Honours and Awards Committee, Club Technology Committee, Director of Coaching, Competition Manager, General Manager of Surf Sports, Communications Manager, SLSA Women's Mentor Program mentor, Director and Vice President.

Sandy introduced the Club's tiered coaching structure, she is a Level 2 coach, a member of the SLSWA and SLSA Surf Sports Advisory Committees. She has also been a Member of the National Development Advisory Committee, National IT Committee and SLSA Rescue of the Month Panel.

Sandy's expanse of activities ranges from Club to national level. She has been nominated for and won many awards, including SLSA National Volunteer of the Year in 2018.

Her strengths include supporting, mentoring, coaching, leadership and innovation within the Club and at State and national level. Sandy's selfless work for others reflects all of the values of our Club.



VIVIENNE GREENFIELD

NEW LIFE MEMBER

Surf Life Saving royalty is the best way to introduce Viv. She comes from the family of Trigg and has been part of the Association for probably more years than she can remember.

It's actually hard to condense her contributions, they came under the headings of administration, patrol service and education.

Viv joined Mullaloo with her husband Tony in 1998 when their children were able to join Nippers.

Viv is a doer. By 2001 she became active in the administration on Sunday mornings, transitioned the Club electronically into the 21st century and eventually became Club Administrator from 2002 -2006.

In 2006, Viv gained her Bronze Medallion, completed active patrols and has been awarded her 10 year patrol service award. She gained her Training Officer and Assessor for Bronze Medallion, ARC and Senior First Aid.

Viv took on the role as Co-ordinator of Training and Education and was a formidable part of the education portfolio for many years. She was recognised with the Club award of Training Officer of the Year in 2010/11.

Viv continued to contribute to the Club even when facing her own personal battles and the Greenfield's are also three generations of Clubbies.

She is a remarkable and outstanding member of our Club who exemplifies our Club values of integrity, trust, excellence, unity, safety and excellence.

GREG KELLEHER

NEW LIFE MEMBER

Greg joined the Mullaloo SLSC in 1991 with his young family, becoming the age group manager for his son Matthew's group for the whole seven years that he was a junior in the Club.

Realising that he could embrace the Surf Club life, Greg gained his Bronze Medallion in 1993, also becoming a training officer for Bronze medallion. Whilst being an age group manager and a patrolling member, he then took the plunge and became Patrol Captain.

A glutton for punishment, Greg put his hand up in 1997 to be the Director of Junior Activities. He made great inroads into the structure we still have today. Greg has just completed 29 years of active patrol service and the Kelleher family is now three generations strong of Clubbies.

In recent years Greg has contributed to the Club's Building



Committee, working to enhance the Club facilities for all.

He embraces all of the values of the Club and lives them every day. Integrity, Family, Safety, Respect, Excellence and Unity.

LIFE MEMBERS

1968 - Edwin (Ted) Scott* 1972 - Gerald (Gerry) Higgins* 1974 - Edwin (Jerry) Bridger* 1976 – Jack Brody* 1981 – Albert Fullarton 1982 - Cecil (Cec) Anderson* 1983 - Anthony (Tony) Martin* 1984 – Brian Martin* 1985 – Kevin Potter 1988 - Nance Bannister 1996 - Peg Davidson* 1999 – Ray Moon* 1999 – Ed Neilan 1999 – Patrick (Pat) Donnelly 2001 – John Gilbody 2001 – Steve Dargie 2004 – Jeff Davidson 2004 – Ray Carter 2004 – Darryl Turner 2006 – Anne-Marie Widermanski 2008 – David Cronk 2008 - Godfrey Lawson 2008 – Alison Gerrard 2009 – Barbara Loudon 2011 – Mark Hills 2011 - David (Dave) Wilson* 2013 – Amanda Lee 2016 - Mark Cleary 2016 – Valerie (Val) Ikin 2016 – Martin Kane 2017 - Guy Edwards 2019 - Kevin Fettes 2020 - Kim Allen 2020 - Anthony (Tony) Greenfield 2020 – Kay Smith 2022 – Sandy Clarke 2022 - Vivienne Greenfield 2022 – Greg Kelleher *Deceased

VALE RAY MOON 11/4/1946 to 28/9/2021

Ray Moon was born on 11/04/1946 and has been around Mullaloo since joining the Club on 10/12/1986, with his sons **Jarred** (still a member), **Trenton** and **Ryan**.



Ray was part of a small group driving change within the Club

during the early 1990s, which culminated in a complete management restructure and development of a new Constitution. Ray was also a significant influence in the decision taken by the Club to have parents join as members with their children – a decision which was initially scoffed at by other Clubs, but which has now become the norm. Mullaloo continues to reap the benefits of this engagement – with many parents gaining patrolling and officiating awards as well as being involved in all aspects of Club operations.

Ray quickly became active within the Club and held many roles and positions including: Junior Officer, Director of Membership, Director of Coaching and Competition, Administrator, Vice President and SLSWA Director of Competition.

Ray was recognised by the Club in the awarding of the greatest accolade – Life Membership – which was conferred on 6/5/1999.

In later years Ray moved south of the river – but still kept in touch with members from his era within the Club.

Ray had been battling a long illness until he passed away on the night of Tuesday 28/9/2021, and is finally at peace.



PRESIDENT'S REPORT

Craig Bull | President

As I sat and reflected on putting this report together again this year, I really wanted to incorporate what is important for our members to know, whilst acknowledging and thanking the great member support we had. It's important also to highlight the great successes and achievement of the Club and many key individuals

This year we celebrated our 60th year as a Club. The Mullaloo Surf Life Saving Club was founded in 1961 and we have a long and proud history, made up of so many amazing people. Every day, our Club and our members, deliver Surf Life Saving Australia's mission: **we exist to save lives, to create great Australians and build better communities.** Our members contribute in so many ways, from our Nippers, to our Masters and everyone in between, to ensure we realise that mission on Mullaloo Beach.

We are now a Club of over 2,000 active members and we are one of WA's leading Surf Life Saving Clubs.

Our mantra of creating "Opportunities for Life", extends to our vision to be a highly valued organisation in the local community, with a mission to provide activities and services for a safer, sustainable community. The purpose is, and will always be, to provide lifesaving services on the beach. This has not varied from day one of our Club's existence. There are a lot of moving parts to this wonderful organisation.

So where did it all start?

From concerns raised by a near drowning and fatalities at local and country beaches, some Mullaloo locals decided to do something about it. Mullaloo SLSC was created in 1961, lead by the Club's first President **Tony Martin**.

The Club's founding plaque was originally placed in recognition of local Mullaloo identity **Jack Hastings**, who was a naval hero, his untimely death in a road accident led to the creation of our Club in his memory and was the genesis of Mullaloo Surf Life Saving Club.

A new plaque has been placed in our Club entry hall to commemorate the founding members of the Mullaloo SLSC who had the foresight to establish a Surf Life Saving Club on this site in Oct 1961, to provide surf rescue and water safety to the local community

The founding members acknowledged are **Cecil Cockman, Margaret Cockman, Tony Martin, Jack Neville, Ted Scott** and **Tony Villanova**.

How proud our Club's pioneers would be today, to see the success of what they so passionately created 60 years ago.

Our history books indicate Mullaloo's birth might however, have been premature. Membership was tiny, there was no adjoining residential suburb, and our beach was isolated and only enjoyed by weekenders. Basic facilities were non-existent. Mullaloo was a sandy, sleepy holiday place in the middle of nowhere. How different to today's surrounding area.

The Club started with enthusiasm and bang. After running a full-scale surf carnival in its first year, it was a false dawn. For the remainder of the 1960's the Club struggled to remain in existence. A hard-working group of women and men held on, until with the help of the Shire of Wanneroo the Club and SLSWA consolidated and grew, with the Club successfully emerging from the toughest early years endured by any WA Club, successfully growing to what it is today.

From the time our Club was created, it has seen thousands of members come and go and contribute along the way. We have seen changes in the way surf life saving activities are conducted, the increasing diversity of our members, the evolution of the buildings that house our equipment and where everyone socialises. The story continues today.

60 years of existence and growth is something to be very proud of!

On behalf of the current Board of Directors and the Management team I would like to acknowledge everyone, from our current members, to those who have been members in the past, and those future members who have and will continue to contribute in some way to the fabric and ongoing success of our Club. We know that the Club will have a long and successful history ahead of it.

Back to the year just gone. With the Club now operating all year round, we tend to lose sight of when we draw a close to one year and the next one begins. As a reminder, our Annual Report reflects the financial year from April 2021 to March 2022.

Along with the rest of society, we tackled a major disruption to our lives. Unfortunately, Covid-19 did not, and has not, gone away. It brought some serious challenges to all, in both our personal lives and how we ran our Club. The criticality of health and wellbeing has been elevated in importance by our members, their family, and friends, with the ongoing legacy of Covid-19 still affecting many.

Our members again demonstrated incredible resilience and passion, even at times when the processes were challenging and causing angst to some. It was incumbent on us to follow the government mandates, as well as the restrictions introduced by Surf Life Saving Western Australia and the City of Joondalup. Our thanks to **Jenni Wilke** who stepped in at short notice to fulfil the onerous task of documenting the required Covid-19 member data.

Acknowledging this, Mullaloo SLSC operated through Covid-19 and with the continued outstanding support of dedicated volunteers who patrol our beaches, our multiple layers within our Management Structure and all members who take the time to contribute. Thank you to all.

Each of the General Managers of key operational portfolios has provided more detailed information throughout the Annual Report, but I just wanted to highlight some key things that I thought were important. I know the list of achievements goes far beyond this, but:

- Again, another year we did not lose a life on the beach during patrol hours – this seems strange to highlight this, but it is our overarching Club goal
- We continued strong, stable, prudent financial governance, with an excellent financial performance that provides security to our Club
- One of our Club Life Members, Mark Hills was given the added honour of being awarded a Life Membership to SLSWA. Mark's contributions to both our Club and SLSWA over 30 years has been significant and his contribution cannot be given justice in a few sentences.
- We also were able to recognise the achievements of three Club members who we bestowed Club Life Member status – Sandy Clarke, Viv Greenfield, and Greg Kelleher. Again, there is too much to say about their outstanding contributions to do justice, except to say well done and thank you.

- We also saw the recognition by SLSA where Carlo Tenaglia and Nick lellamo who were recognised with a National Medal which amongst other things included having completed over 30 patrol hours for over 15 full seasons – what an effort and great recognition.
- In addition, we saw Club Members Steve Dargie 40 years, Mark Hills 25 years, Greg Kelleher 25 years and Tony Greenfield 20 years, being recognised by SLSA for patrol service.
- Our Club had the honour of being named Woodside Nipper Club of the Year. What a wonderful effort by everyone who contributed to this success.
- In addition, we had multiple SLSWA award finalists. Well done to those individuals .
- We again had a year on year increase in patrolling members, who delivered 8,920 patrol hours. What a number. Thank you to our lifesaving cohort
- Membership numbers increased to 2,368, making our Club the largest in WA, including 755 Woodside Nippers. That is a lot of children on our beach on a weekend morning and many afternoons during the week. Thank you to the dedicated volunteers who make this happen every week
- Our Surf Sports competitors did our Club proud, with so many achievements across all disciplines, aided by the great support of our Club's dedicated coaches and officials.
- In addition to Senior Sports winners our Nippers also did us proud with so many winners that it would take forever to recognise them all other than to acknowledge a very big well done.
- Though we had many winners, it was equally satisfying to see so many participants do themselves and the Club proud.
- We continued to recognise our volunteers in different ways, including the popular ECU Volunteer of the Month, as well as acknowledging those members with years of continuous service.

Our Club does not achieve this without the help of many different people within and outside of our Club. Every year the thank you list grows, but I would like to make special mention of our key stakeholders, sponsors and partners.

Firstly, though I would like to make a special thank you to my fellow Directors on the Club's Board. As a Board we are just the temporary custodians of the Club on behalf of you, our members. To Sandy Clarke, Chrissie Payne, Carly Ferguson, Jacqui McGregor and Guy Edwards – an enormous and very personal thanks to each of you, for your dedication, hard work and most of all your support. You make the hard decisions, sometimes the things people don't like, perform so many tasks that aren't seen and can't be measured, but are integral to the long-term success of this great Club.

I would like to make special mention of the Executive, our General Managers of the operational portfolios GM Surf Sports – **Cameron Rapley**, GM Facilities – **Cindy De Bomford** and GM Marketing – **Simone Truter**, who were ably supported by their management teams. And of course, none of this works without a committed and very stable Finance Manager, **John Hillen**. Thank you!

To our stakeholders in the City of Joondalup – Mayor Albert Jacobs, CEO James Pearson, Councillor Nigel Jones, Anne Swanson, Property Manager and the team at the City of Joondalup, thank you, for ongoing and committed support. You are integral to our Club's success.

Thanks too, to our main SLSWA sponsor **Woodside**, who provide the support to help our Nipper programs to flourish. To **Glen** and his team at **Wanneroo Isuzu Ute**, who support us each year not only with a great looking, reliable vehicle, but support us in so many other ways. And to all other sponsors thank you. Our Marketing team have included acknowledgements to all in our Annual Report.

I would also like to thank our wonderful partners **Olivier** and **Cassandra Letrône** from **Swell**. Four years on, working through the toughest and hardest period in their history **Olivier** and **Cassandra** and their team have gone from strength to strength and always with a smile on their faces. We are grateful to have you all part of our family.



14 MULLALOO SLSC 2021/22 ANNUAL REPORT

We sincerely also appreciate the ongoing support of our Vice Patron, **Ian Goodenough**, Member for Moore who this year has coordinated a Federal Grant to part fund the total refurbishment of our First Aid Room. The refurbishment was completed during the year and will allow us to provide first class facilities to provide better care to the community.

To State MLA for Hillarys – **Caitlin Collins** thank you for your ongoing support.

I would also like to extend a warm welcome to our new staff members Administration Officer **Maria Pascoe** and Marketing Officer **Simone Pfieffer**, while thanking our previous staff of **Natalie Mews** and **Simon Spencer** who contributed significantly over the past 12 months. In addition, thank you to **Philippa Taylor**, our wonderful bookkeeper.

For all the great things we achieve and witness, unfortunately there are times of sadness. This year was no exception. Throughout the year we had the passing of two of our Club members **Ray Moon** and **Troy Pickard**. **Ray** joined our Club in 1986 and was an active member for over 30 years, being awarded Club Life Membership in 1999 for outstanding services to the Mullaloo SLSC.

Troy was not only a current active member, he has been a long-term supporter of our Club in his previous role as Mayor of the City of Joondalup and was instrumental in the support of our Club over many years. Both **Ray** and **Troy** will be sadly missed but their memories will always be with us. We thank them for their contributions to our Club and our thoughts continue to be with their families.

As I highlighted last year, I think you get the picture now, we are a Club that is continually moving, developing, and delivering. We are a Club that is filled with incredible members, who support our community and each other in so many ways. I am sure the 2022/23 season will bring so many more new highlights and I look forward to seeing and hearing the stories of our members enjoying being part of it all.

This concludes my second and unfortunately last year as Club President of this amazing Club. I am proud to have been able to contribute to the leadership of our Club as a Board Director and Club President over the past 4 years. I hope I have met Club member expectations as a leader. I have been supported by so many wonderful people throughout that journey and will forever hold the fondest of memories. I look forward to continuing to be actively involved and to contribute to the success of our Club.

Let's enjoy the year ahead together, as One Club.

BOARD REPORT



Craig Bull

Sandy Clarke

Guy Edwards

Carly Ferguson

Jacqui McGregor 🛛 🛛 🛛

Chrissie Payne

Like last year, I would open this year's Board report by answering the question what does the Mullaloo SLSC Board specifically do?

The Board continued to oversee the management of the Club and continued to follow the Board charter of:

- Being accountable to all stakeholders;
- Ensuring that the Mullaloo SLSC is well-governed and well-managed and hence capable of achieving good outcomes through its strategies;
- To protect and enhance surf lifesaving's legacy and reputation together with the value and standing of the Mullaloo SLSC brand, respecting the concerns and interests of members and the wider community;
- To strive for excellence in risk and governance and provide responsible, ethical and creative leadership;
- Implement effective financial and risk management oversight to ensure continued Associational viability and sustainability;
- Assist the Mullaloo SLSC's Management team as required, to nurture and develop critical relationships and partnerships to progress the vision and work of the Association;
- Ensure transparency and integrity of information to members and other stakeholders concerning Mullaloo SLSC's operations, challenges and achievements.

The 2021/22 Mullaloo Surf Life Saving Club Board saw a small change with the Board team with the retirement of Directors **Joshua Bull** and **David Rossow**. We thank them very much for their passion, commitment and great contribution in their roles and to the long term benefit of the Club. The Board welcomed two new directors **Guy Edwards** and **Jacqui McGregor** joining current President **Craig Bull** and Directors **Sandy Clarke**, **Chrissie Payne** and **Carly Ferguson**. Sandy Clarke was appointed Vice President by the Board. The year was one of many positives and some ongoing challenges. Great members doing great things, Covid interruptions not going away and some vacancies in some of our Club Management roles limited at times the strategic thinking and the concentration and involvement of the Board in some operational areas of the Club by the Board.

Acknowledging this, the Club's governance and board structure, ably supported by a strong Management team in our key areas, helped the Board continue to deliver many of our strategies outlined in the 2020 to 2024 Strategic Plan to our members and key stakeholders.

- Continuing to operate within its means utilising income generated from membership, facilities, sponsorship arrangements and to run the Club on a day to basis while additional income generated through our commercial arrangements with **Swell** and government grants provide other resources to the Club and return benefits to the members. The Club continues to be in a very strong financial position due to prudent management practices.
- Managed the ongoing and multiple regular changes required through the impact of Covid-19 to ensure member safety and meeting strict government requirements and SLSWA guidelines. This matter alone took significant time by all to manage.
- Were able to support again, not increasing membership fees.
- Throughout the annual report, so many people are thanked for their tireless efforts, but the Board would like to thank a number of key people.

The Board would like to firstly extend a sincere thankyou to all patrolling members and volunteers who support the Club's existence.

To the General Management team who have supported the Board. Thank you. Unfortunately, there were a number of key vacancies this year but our General Managers and Managers who fulfilled the roles did an outstanding job to achieve some great success in multiple key measurements. Thankyou.

The Board also would like to thank all the Chairperson's and members of the Club's Board Approved Committees:

- Risk and Governance
- Policy and Guidelines
- Honours and Awards including Life Membership Evaluation Panel
- Building Committee
- Technology Committee

What's next for the Board in 2022/23.

As always, the Board will continue to work closely with Club members and key stakeholders the Board will be a continue to focus on the Club's 2020 – 2024 Strategic Plan in conjunction with SLSWA and SLSA strategic plans. The focus is on the overarching goal of "no loss of life on our beaches" supported by the strategic goals of:

- Improving lifesaving services by developing the skills and educating our lifesavers;
- A One Club approach to enhance member experience across all areas from Nippers to Masters
- Improve governance and financial sustainability



One of the additional and extremely high priorities of the Board will be to develop strategies around increased volunteer participation. Acknowledging the changing world we live in and people's lives have become busier, there is a need to encourage more members at our Club from Nipper Parents to our Masters and everyone in between to see how they can help. We have a diverse range of people within our Club with a variety of skill sets that can be applied in some way. Without members becoming more active in volunteering on the beach and the management of the Club it makes it more challenging to ensure member services and benefits are maintained.

With all that said finally, the Board would like to thank all its members this year for their support, respectfulness and their contributions in making the job of the Board easier.

BOARD APPOINTED COMMITTEES

Risk & Governance Committee

Noel Fortmann – Chair Andrew Gorrie Ed Neilan Anne-Marie Widermanski

Honours and Awards Committee

Barbara Loudon (LMEP) – Chair Sandy Clarke Dave Cronk (LMEP) John Dooley Guy Edwards (LMEP) Alison Gerrard (LMEP) Amanda Lee (LMEP) Tracey Tenaglia Katrina West (LMEP) LMEP: Life Membership Evaluation Panel

Policy and Guidelines Committee

Anne-Marie Widermanski – Chair (2021) Steve Dargie – Chair (2022) Guy Edwards

Building Committee

Roger Gregson – Chair Greg Kelleher Carlo Tenaglia

Technology Committee Kim Allen – Chair Paul Bloomer Sandy Clarke Simon Spencer Carlo Tenaglia

OPERATIONS

General Manager Operations

Operations Management Portfolio

Lifesaving Services | Education

The Operations GM role had remained vacant for the season which meant extra work for the two Managers from the portfolio. We would like to thank **Tony Greenfield** for providing guidance and assistance when he could to the management and Board. Equally, the Board appreciates the extra work that both **Nick Iellamo** managing the Lifesaving portfolio and **Bernie Flint** managing the Education portfolio, contributed over the season.

The Club had it's members tested on their lifesaving skills on many occasions over the season. We have mentioned just a few below, noting that one group had received a SLSA Meritorious Award – Group Commendation for Bravery for their efforts.

VIGILANT MULLALOO MASTER'S

One Saturday morning in July 2021, a band of Mullaloo Wave Warriors were launching their surf skis at 7.30am on a wintry morning when a cry for help from nearby swimmers rang out.

A large group of intrepid Ocean enthusiasts, members of the Human Excellence Project, were having a quick dip when they encountered the strength of Mother Nature as they became caught in a rip and trapped in the wave impact zone. Multiple hands were waving for assistance. It was then, that the Mullaloo Masters Surf Life Savers quickly responded. The team of Jeff Vidler, Dale Gration, Jeff Baker, Amanda Lee, Tracey Bartlett, Brenton Rose, Jennifer Orme, Richard Orme, Richard Stephenson, Phill Dee, Katrina West and Jennifer Wood all played a role in assisting distressed and fatigued swimmers from the water and tending to their first aid needs. These heroic acts of bravery and skill earned the group a SLSA Meritorious Award - Group Commendation for Bravery which was presented at the Club.

The swimming group later followed up with the Club for a Beach Safety session which included identifying rips.

This rescue drew quite a bit of media exposure and although much of it showcased our legendary Jeff Vidler, it was a team effort though the vigilance of all.

SKILLS FOR LIFE

A successful Winter rescue was carried out less than two weeks after the above at Mullaloo beach. This time by brave young members, **Brodie Lee** and **Callum Foley**, who saved the life of a 6ft adult male caught in a rip.

An eyewitness recounted the event to the Club and media in awe of their nonchalant heroism. "A very fit couple was swimming, and both got stuck in a rip while getting smashed by multiple waves. They were both screaming for help; unfortunately, the crashing waves made it difficult to hear the screams. The distressed woman emerged exasperated from the water, screaming for help."



Luckily Brodie and Callum heard the screams while out on the water and went to the man's rescue. Brodie delivered the man to shore after he fell off the board many times and then proceeded out again to ride the waves as if nothing had happened.

"I spoke to the male who got out, and he said he could barely breathe and was scared for his life. He said he didn't know what would have happened if they weren't there."

The rescue skills developed through the Club have most certainly proved skills for life! Great outcome Brodie and Callum.

RIP RESCUE

On Friday 10 September young member, **Liam Quinn**, came to the rescue of his school peers caught in a rip at Mullaloo Beach North.

Liam was partaking in an outdoor education swim test with approximately twenty of his Year 10 peers from Ocean Reef SHS. Whilst out swimming, the students were confronted with a flash rip. Most of the students began to panic and one girl, in particular, was struggling to deal with the rip and was going under. Liam quickly swam to her assistance and the girl grabbed onto Liam in her panic. Liam then proceeded to bring the girl in halfway to shore. A teacher then came out with a rescue tube to offer assistance. Liam had secured the girl to the board and bought her to shore. She was put into the recovery position to clear her airways. An ambulance was then called for assistance.

Liam also drew upon his surf life saving experience by assisting other students that were struggling in the surf.

Liam remained calm and collected through the entire experience. The rescued girl was incredibly grateful after the incident by contacting Liam to say that he had "saved her life".

The Club is incredibly proud and humbled by its members that have come through its Nippers programs and been able to draw upon their skillset to perform rescues like Liam's and save lives. Congratulations Liam!





LIFESAVING SERVICES

Nick lellamo | Manager Lifesaving Services

The first full season of Surf Life Saving since the pandemic began and we have experienced one full of challenges. This is not new to us, as a Mullaloo Family and as usual, we find ways to overcome and conquer.

The season began back in September of 2021 with the heralding of our Refurbished First Aid room. Yes, we had some hurdles with access but once more we identified, adapted, and forged ahead.

There were many behind the scenes people who happily volunteered their time to oversee the makeover. **Greg Kelleher, Roger Gregson, Carlo Tenaglia** and especially **Josh Bull** who pulled extra strings to get the room operational for the start of the season. **Dave Cronk** who is our Maintenance professional, finishing off the room with his highly skilled room building talents. A huge Thank You.

The Beach Mat. This has been an outstanding success with the amount of positive feedback I have received from members and beach goes. **Dara Mills** and her collective band of helpers have done an amazing job of keeping the Mat flat as the ocean breezes continually undermine all the excellent work. Also, a super huge shoutout to **Matt Windle** for his Earthmoving marvel feats – AND for using his skills to keep the shifting sands from toppling the Observation Tower.



get asked to provide water safety increases every year, as does the number of competitors - or is that just me? After our scares in December with bitey marine critters I reached out to the IRBer's and Surf Boaties to add some additional layers to our water safety teams, to two of the larger events. What transpired had me holding back feelings of an emotional nature to which I am very unaccustomed. The IRB's added three extra boats for a total of five and the Boaties had two surf boats patrolling the outer edges of the course. Also, we had fifty members on Boards, Skis and one crazy person swimming around the course towing a Rescue Tube. The Event organisers came back to us with a huge outpouring of accolades as they had never seen this type of commitment from other Surf Clubs, ever!! Well done Mullaloo Surf Life Saving Club!

The number of external events for which we continually

PATROL LEADERS

Alistair Cook Ava Bushby Brett Warner Carlo Tenaglia Christie Watt Ellie Black Frank Browne Helen O'Brien Jenni Wood Jessica Thorne Katrina West Kev Fettes Laurie De Mamiel Liam Rogers Magda Upton Mark Hills Michael Stone Paul Copland Peggy Bakalis Phil Dee Steve Mignon Terry Upston Tony Greenfield

I have stated previously how long our season has become, beginning in September, and ending in late April. Towards the end of the season the number of people attending patrols declined sharply. Not so our Patrol Captains and Vice Captains. These Guys and Gals are there week in week out and without them – well, no Surf Club! The huge amount of responsibility that lies on their shoulders is never evident as they manage their responsibilities with care, maturity and professionalism (most of the time anyway).

My role would be impossible to oversee if not for the strength, advice, and friendship I glean from everyone. Please accept my humble thank you. Also, I thank:

Tony Greenfield: A Legend of the Club. His support and advice are invaluable.

Natalie Godwin: Natalie is the Club First Aid officer, responsible for the first aid room and its equipment. Thank you, Nat.

Some highlights of this season...

ABALONE PATROL

This season, we implemented the Abalone patrol as a regular of the scheduled roster. SLSWA were very thankful for our assistance and how well our patrol Captains managed the task before them. Next season, I envisage an added fisheries session taking the total to five - and yes, Uluwatu will take the first one.

SLSA NATIONAL PATROL SERVICE AWARDS

15 YEARS	10 Y
Brett Warner	Brett Wen
Chris Stone	Christine I
Christie Watt	Gordon M
David Rossow	Graham D
Keith Anderson	Helen loai
Laurence Campbell	Jake Libbis
Martin Kennedy	Michael St
Phill Dee	Noel Fortr
Rebecca O'Malley	Paul Copla
Steven Nestor	Sarah Gre
Trevor Barker	Simon Gio

EARS

۱n Payne ЛсCabe Deans anna s stone mann land egson dley

5 YEARS

Anthony O'Brien Caden Hawker Caleb Mills David Chadderton Lisa Mahon Neve Macleod Sarah May William Ketteringham

The National Patrol Service Award recognises patrolling members that have completed a minimum of 16 hours of patrol (excludes water safety) each season.



TOP 50 MEMBER PATROL HOURS*

	First Name	Surname	Total Hours
1	Jacqui	McGregor	117.5
2	Peggy	Bakalis	109.5
3	Nat	Godwin	106.25
4	Carlo	Tenaglia	98.25
5	Nathan	Vartesi	82.5
6	David	Chadderton	82
7	Clayton	Millar	81
8	Jenni	Wood	78
9	Frank	Browne	74.5
10	Yuko	Haywood	74.25
11	William	Ketteringham	72.75
12	Jamie	Gilbert	72
13	Paul	Copland	70.5
14	Rosanne	Barrowclough	n 70
15	Nick	Iellamo	68
16	Elaine	Macdonald	67
17	Steven	Truter	64.5
18	Guy	Edwards	64
19	Simon	Foley	64
20	lsaac	Crothers	63.5
21	Liam	Harris	63
22	Annika	Rasmussen	62.25
23	Rohan	Cox	61
24	Neil	Forbes	61
25	Ayden	Bartle	59.5
26	Megan	Sizer	57.5
27	Anne-Marie	Widermanski	57.42
28	Kay	Smith	57.25
29	Catherine	Trainor	55
30	Dara	Mills	54
31	Magda	Upton	52.75
32	Todd	Bartle	52.5
33	Sarah	Gregson	52.5
34	Drew	Brown	52
35	Annika	Crockford	52
36	Stuart	Ketteringham	52
37	Greg	Murray	51.5
38	Martin	Kennedy	51
39	Ellie	Black	50.25
40	Aron	Cook	50
41	Laurie	de Mamiel	50
42	Graham	Deans	49.5
43	Phill	Dee	49.25
44	Peter	Rogers	49
45	Jeffrey	Baker	48.5
46	Megan	Bulley	48.5
47	Tony	Greenfield	48
48	Scott	Harvey	48
49	Kirra	Truter	48
50	Brenda	Campbell	47
* Indiv	idual patrol hours	include all volunte	er patrol hours

* Individual patrol hours include all volunteer patrol hours from those contributed at Mullaloo beach and Abalone patrol (includes water safety).

PATROL STATISTICS THREE SEASON COMPARISON

Season	2021/22	2020/21	2019/20
Rescues	2	13	17
Preventions	920	1,049	244
First Aid	59	140	262

PATROL ACTIVITY

Activity	Total
First Aids	59
Preventions	920
Rescues	2
Patrolling Members	502
Patrol Hours	9,043
Water Safety Hours	3,212

PATROL HOURS BY TEAM

Team Name	2021/22	2020/21
Abalone incorpo	rated in patrols	229
Bells	523	582.75
Billabong	791	876.7
Bondi	454	526.25
Cable	478	662
Christmas Day	99	109.4
Kirra	478	568.6
Malibu	821	785.5
McCarthy	579	674
Uluwatu	941	890
Redgate	701	505
Strickland	-	475
Torquay	1048	1,004.25
Waimea	594	749.5
Whitehaven	648	-





EDUCATION

Bernadette Flint | Manager Education

A big thank you to **Bernie Flint** who took over the Education Managers role part way through the 2019/20 season and due to family commitments has relinquished the role in March 2022. She has seen us through the pandemic and set-up a strong education team.

I know **Bernie** would like to thank those people who encouraged her and guided her through the process this season, including the Education Team consisting of **Jude Harlow**, **Helen O'Brien**, and **Todd Bartle**. We also have a new member of the Education Team from the youth in **Ava Bushby**. As always, the team has been well supported by our insider at SLSWA, **Sandy Clarke**.

CONGRATULATIONS to everyone who made the commitment to either embark upon gaining an award or increase their skills for higher awards. Education awards ensure that our beautiful beach and community are safe with proficient lifesavers who are ready to patrol and volunteer for water safety activities, not only at our own beach but others too.

This does not happen by chance. Mullaloo has an exceedingly talented group of trainers and assessors with an enormous amount of skills and knowledge behind all courses. To ensure that our high-quality reputation in training remains, trainers and assessors attend various workshops updating their skills and knowledge of the latest trends. The high level of

commitment, professionalism and camaraderie during these workshops is testament to the dedication to Surf Life Saving that our Club has.

Having introduced a youth training team last year, we now have a strong team of future trainers. We are so lucky to have so many enthusiastic youths that are just absorbing the knowledge and skills and wanting to share this. Being able to offer pathways for our youth is testament to our motto "Opportunities for life", the youth of our Club are indicative in the continuous evolution of education within our Club.

Education is a lifelong occurrence. The dedication and commitment of time to the courses is the starting point to all things Mullaloo SLSC. From the most important part of our volunteer journey, that is patrolling our beach to competing in competitions far and wide. It all starts with gaining an award, CONGRATULATIONS and hats off to you all!

TRAINERS AND ASSESSORS

To our dedicated Trainers and Assessors: Thank you for your contributions this season, and I hope you will all be back next season to share your skills and knowledge at our Club. You are a vital inclusion, and our Club could not run without you, Thank-you.





TRAINERS

Alistair Cook Anna Young Anne-Marie Widermanski Anthony Greenfield Ava Bushby Ayden Bartle Bernadette Flint **Cameron Rapley** Carlo Tenaglia Conan Millar Dara Mills David Rossow Ed Neilan Guy Edwards Helen O'Brien Isaac Crothers Jacqui McGregor Jennifer Wood Joanne Bean-Hannigan Judith Harlow **Kevin Fettes** Laurence Campbell Luke Triston

Mark Hills Natalie Godwin Pagona Bakalis Robert Payne Roger Gregson Sandra Clarke Todd Bartle

ASSESSORS

Anne-Marie Widermanski Anthony Greenfield Bernadette Flint Carlo Tenaglia David Rossow Edward Neilan Guy Edwards Jacqui McGregor Jennifer Wood Judith Harlow Laurence Campbell Lynette Brosens Mark Hills Sandra Clarke Vivienne Greenfield



TRAINEE TRAINERS

Annika Crockford Christina Chessa Tanya Honor

YOUTH TRAINERS

Annika Rasmussen Caden Hawker Cory Bartle Eadie Bushby Molly Bean Rochelle Villemin Sophie Mills

EDUCATION SERVICE AWARDS

A remarkable achievement and dedication to the award holders below. These members have been sharing their knowledge and skills to not only our members but members of other Clubs and should be commended on their contribution.



10 YEAR FACILITATOR Mark Hills

10 YEAR TRAINING Bernadette Flint

5 YEAR TRAINING Jude Harlow

10 YEAR ASSESSING Tony Greenfield

5 YEAR ASSESSING Bernadette Flint

NEW AWARD RECIPIENTS

ADVANCE RESUSCITATION TECHNIQUES CERTIFICATE (ARTC)

ARTC GROUP 1

Trainers: Sandy Clarke

Anne-Marie Widermanski Anthony Greenfield Ava Bushby Avden Bartle Bernadette Flint Christie Watt Corey Bartle Dara Mills Ellie Black Frank Browne Guy Edwards Helen O'Brien Isaak Karagoglou Jacqui McGregor Jennifer Wood Jo Bean-Hannigan Judith Harlow Maren Scriven Natalie Godwin Paul Copland Peggy Bakalis Phill Dee Rebecca Millar Trevor Bulley Vivienne Greenfield

ARTC GROUP 2

Trainers: Anne-Marie Widermanski

Alistair Cook Annika Rasmussen Aron Cook Carlo Tenaglia Katrina West Mark Hills Rebecca O'Malley Tracey Tenaglia

ARTC GROUP 3 & 4

Trainer: Sandy Clarke

Andrew Manning Annika Rasmussen Barbara Loudon Benjamin Jones Chelsea Bull Clayton Millar Drew Brown Lachlan Halvorson Paul McKenner Saxon France Thomas Scott

BRONZE MEDALLION (BM)

BM GROUP 1 Trainers: Alistair Cook, Jo Bean-Hannigan, Jude Harlow

Ayden Bartle Amy Waddell Demi Van Rensburg Holly Brown Ian Plummer Jeremy Fitzpatrick Joshua Barton Luan Lourens Michael Lewis Nathan Vartesi Sean Anderson Stuart Ketteringham

BM GROUP 2

Trainers: Peggy Bakalis, Tony Greenfield, Dara Mills

Dale Harrison Greg Murray Heather Bell Jacqueline Bassanelli Liam Quinn Lowri Bishop Maison Cox Matt Bond Russell Metham Thomas Kelly Tony Allen Warren Robinson

BM GROUP 3 & 4

Trainers: Sandy Clarke, Guy Edwards, Isaac Crothers, Luke Triston, Jo Bean-Hannigan

Amelia Rowe Belle McBennett Carl Mills Caroline Bamford Charlie Maher Daniel Brown Declan Hewlett Ethan Rapley Joe Csont Kirra Truter Max Zivkovic Michael de Bruyn Peter King Sam Kitson Scott Harvey Simon Stirling Stephanie Dunne Taylah Meikle





SURF RESCUE CERTIFICATE (SRC)

SRC GROUP 1 Trainers: Ava Bushby,

Peggy Bakalis, Trevor Bulley.

Abby Plummer Alexandra Browne Ava Watson **Benjamin Rowe** Callum Foley Ella Walker Eoghan Barrowclough Hudson Baird Isabella Biddle Isabelle Mahon Jennifer Mills Lilarni King Lois Bushby **Riley Quinn** Tahlee Jones Tom Linehan Zoe Tinniswood

SRC GROUP 2

Trainers: Vivienne Greenfield, Helen O'Brien, Guy Edwards, Edie Bushby, Caden Hawke

Aidan Mills Alison Oswell Blake Atkinson **Brenton Harris** Daniel Spies **Dylan Vanderwiel** Franc Du Pre Grace Doyle Jade Mountjoy Jonathan York Lauren Mucci Lucas Cheshire Matthew Bloomer Nikolas Wakely Serhan Memik Sheri-Lynn Ludwig Tonya Vander Loop



Trainers: Sandy Clarke, Peggy Bakalis, Jo Bean-Hannigan, Guy Edwards

Ashanti Hulme-Moir Billie-Rose Welsh Caroline Bamford Colbie Meikle Darcy Howe Finn Barrett Genevieve Crockett Igor Zivkovic Jason Hulme-Moir Keela Totten Lucas Guymer Luke Genoni Tayte Kimber

NIPPER RESCUE CERTIFICATE (NRC)

NRC GROUP 1 Trainers: Bernie Flint, Kevin Fettes

Adam Mills Aine Fox Alexandra May Benjamin Ecker **Brendan Murray** Cassie Kay Chris Gorton David Mcintyre Eliza Hansen Emily Di Florio Franc Du Pre **Graham Sloss** Grant John Ilona Malinowska James Hadley Jeffrey Marshall Jon Shudra Joshua Munro Julie Callanan Kathy Oswell Kirit Mahasuria Luciano Albaytero Luciano Salgado Maria Homan Nicole Germishuizen Nikolas Wakely Norbert Lopez Di Fondi Paul Holliday Peter Corbett



Stephanie Myles Tim Butterworth Tony Berry

NRC GROUP 2

Trainers: Sandy Clarke, Bernie Flint

Clarissa Mclaren Dario Mratovich David Lyon Debbie Mackay Doug Fox Duncan Marr Fionnuala O'Connor Greg Ferguson Jamie Hannd Jane Gorton Kendra Murray Megan Hannd Nathan Mackay Nick Jacques Nicolas Bigwood Noel Germishuizen Pippa Harrison Rachael Neelemaat **Rethea Spies** Rose Nasab Steven Maher

IRB CREW CERTIFICATE 1

Trainers: Roger Gregson

Brenda Campbell Catherine Trainor Elaine Macdonald Jack Barrett Jamie Gilbert Luke Millar Samuel Leeks



IRB CREW CERTIFICATE 2

Trainers: Todd Bartle, Carlo Tenaglia

Ethan Rapley Greg Murray Kirra Truter Lowri Bishop Nathan Vartesi Rosanne Barrowclough Sian Millar Tanaha Worth Taylah Meikle

IRB DRIVERS 1

Trainers: Carlo Tenaglia, Roger Gregson, Todd Bartle

Annika Rasmussen Aron Cook Isaac Crothers Jayden Millar Luke Triston William Ketteringham

RADIO OPERATOR CERTIFICATE

Bethany Bamford Donnacha Murphy Liam Harris Ruby Smith

PAIN MANAGEMENT

Trainer: Sandy Clarke

Annika Rasmussen Ava Bushby Clayton Millar Corey Bartle Ellie Black Franke Browne Gordon McCabe Joanne Bean-Hannigan Jude Harlow Lesley Galjaardt Peggy Bakalis Rochelle Villemin





NEW TRAINING AWARDS ATTAINED

AWARD	NEW
WA Training Officer	2
WA Facilitator (ART)	2
WA Training Officer (Bronze)	2
WA Training Officer (IRB)	1
Age Manager Course	20

NUMBER OF NEW AWARDS ATTAINED AND NUMBER OF AWARDS REQUALIFIED THIS SEASON

AWARD	NEW	REQUAL.
Advanced Resuscitation Techniques	44	77
Age Manager Course	20	
Bronze Medallion	41	388
First Aid/SFA [AID]		2
IRB Crewperson	16	81
Nipper Rescue Certificate	53	29
Pain Management	12	25
Radio Certificate	4	1
Resuscitation Certificate		2
Silver Medallion – IRB Driver	6	45
Surf Rescue Certificate	47	55
WA Assessor		16
WA Assessor (BM)		7
WA Assessor (IRB)		6
WA Drone Operator		2
WA Facilitator (ART)		2
WA Facilitator (Beach Management)		1
WA Facilitator (Pain Management)		1
WA Silver Medallion – Beach Management	14	1
WA Training Officer	2	32
WA Training Officer (BM)	2	11
WA Training Officer (IRB)	1	5
TOTAL	262	789

Note there were also 74 First Aid awards. This award is held for 3 years and is largely run through SLSWA.

Again, this year we have had an outstanding number of our members stand up and gain various awards and they all should be congratulated for their dedication to the Club, it is a fantastic achievement.



SKILLS MAINTENANCE

This year we changed the format on the Skills Maintenance (re-qualification of awards). This was run by Jacqui McGregor and a dedicated team of trainers and assessors with very positive feedback. Thank you Sandy Clarke, Guy Edwards, Ed Neilan. Kevin Fettes, Jude Harlow, Helen O'Brien, Mark Hills, Carlo Tenaglia, Dave Rossow, Rob and Anna Young, Jo Bean-Hannigan, Jenni Wood, Anne-Marie Widermanski, Annika Crockford and our registration team Alison Gerard, Rob McGregor and Natalie Caruana.

GOING FORWARD...

The following are objectives for Education for the coming season:

Our Auspice Agreement with SLSWA has been re-signed. We now have a dedicated pool of trainers who can provide vital first aid and CPR training to the community which generates income for the Club. Over the last 12 months we have had increased inquiries for this service, and we are pleased to say have repeat clients.

We have now established a group of Enthusiastic Youth Trainers and have a lot planned with them in the future, this also includes helping with our Woodside Nippers Education. Having pathways for our youth is a priority, the youth of our Club are indicative in the continuous evolution of education within our Club.

We will again next season try and upskill more NRC award holders to either an SRC or Bronze Medallion award.

2022/23 is looking to be one of our biggest seasons in Education with some changes to awards being introduced and we are looking forward to the challenge.

DEVELOPMENT & NIPPERS

Portfolio : Nippers Youth Membership Accessibility and Inclusion

WOODSIDE NIPPERS CLUB OF THE YEAR

Our Club exceeded last season's Nipper membership by 7.7%, welcoming 755 young ones to enjoy our wonderful beach and learn life saving skills. It's great that the Club has a large span of sand and capacity to continue scaling up its service to the Nippers, delivering a well organised curriculum by the army of generous and committed volunteers.

Managing this large Nipper Program takes good preparation. We acknowledge and are thankful for the preparatory work that **Tanya Honor** did as previous General Manager of Development and who covered the Nipper Manager role. **Tanya** facilitated a Nipper Satisfaction Survey post 2020/21 season. As a result of feedback, **Tanya** introduced Nipper Member Information Sessions and AGM specific information sessions. Other efforts included getting information out and collaboration started before Club Days commenced, such as Parent / Age Group Manager (AGM) briefings, Nipper Pack pick ups and proficiency swims.

We believe this effort greatly contributed to the Club winning **Woodside Nippers Club of the Year**!

While there was no formally appointed General Manager of Development, **Sandy Clarke** and **Jacqui McGregor** (Directors) jointly stepped in to fill the role.

Emma Bamforth did a great job as Youth Manager, leading activities for our Club's youth members, including the much loved annual South West camp. Thanks to the many parents and supporters who assisted Emma deliver service tailored to this key age group.

Guy Edwards had a demanding season as Manager Membership, given the many disruptions to people's lives and the growing number of members. He performed this role at his usual high quality and was also the Club's Member Protection Officer. Thanks Guy for such an important contribution.

Since there was no Nipper Managers for U8-9 and U10-13s this season, **Sandy Clarke** and **Jacqui McGregor** acted as guides while the AGMs and parents stepped up to assist. Thanks to **Kelly Marshall** as our U6 & U7 Nipper Manager who coordinated all the new AGMs and Assistants throughout the season, many of them youth. This management was complemented by the collegiate relationship between the experienced and not-soexperienced AGMs who supported each other throughout the season. Thank you to **Natalie Godwin** for the pre-season support with organising the Nipper tubs and first aid kits.

Thanks to **David** and **Emma Chadderton** for their revamp of the Nipper shed to make it as functional as possible, by refitting the Nipper Board Storage area including labelling and sorting of boards. Also, for organising board lease arrangements; parent pickup/drop off of boards for carnivals. Dave also covered Saturday morning Board training while **Penny Fortmann** was away!

Thanks to **Nicki Barrett** (U13 boys AGM), for her great help and experience in Nipper management throughout the season. Thank you also to **Ewa Opiela, Sarah Browne, Lee Linehan, Brenda Campbell** and **Barb Wills-Macri** for your support from beach concierge to Players Teas – the behind the scene Nipper Committee! Thanks also to **Dawn Jones** for assisting the AGMs with carnival organisation.

Thanks to **Peggy Bakalis** for her management of Cable patrol providing coordinated water safety for the Nipper Club days.

Our beach set up crew were awesome all season, this dedicated group had our beach ready for action each Sunday, so thanks **Brendan Briggs, Willie Brosens, Craig Cox, Cheryl Edwards, Guy Edwards, Jacqui McGregor, Rob McGregor, Paul Faranosi,** and **Nat Godwin**.

NIPPER RESCUE CERTIFICATE

Special mention of the 53 members who gained their NRC this season. This award is a vital part of the water safety service the Club delivers for the Nipper program throughout the season. It provides a structured competency for those parents who are keen to offer their time to keep our nippers safe on Club days and training sessions.



ALKIMOS DEVELOPMENT CARNIVAL

The Development carnival is aimed at nippers who have not competed before and provides an opportunity for our regular competitors to blow the winter cobwebs away.

Mullaloo had 69 super AWESOME U10-U13 nippers attend the Development Carnival at Alkimos on Sunday 28 November. Our Mullaloo competitors had some fantastic results.



SUNSMART BUNBURY COUNTRY CARNIVAL

A huge shout out to all families and members who took the trip down Forrest Highway to partake in the Bunbury Country Carnival around Australia Day in January.

Competitors, officials and supporters alike had a great time, with the event including 7 year olds through to Masters. In the Little Nippers event, we had girls in awe of the Surf Boat racing with many saying that they were "Going to do that when we are older!" What is special about this event is the friendships that are forged during and post-competition. There was a good turnout at a "debrief" in Koombana Bay and it was so good hearing all the stories from the different age groups. 2023 will also be hosted by Bunbury – we look forward to a good turn out for that event too!

SUNSMART LITTLE NIPPER CHAMPIONSHIPS

An awesome effort from our U8-U9's on the weekend of the SunSmart Little Nipper Championships held at Sorrento. For many, their first Championship event! The conditions were perfectly suited to our Nippers. Congratulations to all athletes, water safety, officials and supporters.

SUNSMART NIPPER QUALIFIERS

A perfect weekend for competition at Mullaloo Beach as we hosted the SunSmart Nipper Qualifying Carnival. The aim of this carnival is to qualify competitors for the upcoming SunSmart Nipper Championships in the following events: Boards, Iron, Board Rescue (U11-U13), sprints and flags.

Mullaloo qualified an amazing 60 competitors into the Champs with a further 23 as reserves.

This event was supported by members across the Club setting up and packing up the beach, a whole range of catering jobs and IRB water safety. A big thank you to **Julie Rapley** for coordinating the event. Thank you also to **Annika Rasmussen** who was a referee in one of the water arenas and **Vicki Rasmussen** on the beach. **Jesper Rasmussen**, **Marni Black**, **Dawn Jones** and **Sandy Clarke** also officiated over the weekend.



SUNSMART NIPPER CHAMPIONSHIPS

Congratulations to all the Nippers, showing great tenacity in the challenging conditions – like none before seen throughout the season! Mullaloo had 102 Nippers represent the Club and contributed to the overall 4th position in the State – awesome effort everyone.

A massive shout out of thanks and appreciation to the Age Group Managers **Drew Brown**, **Ryan Stephenson**, **Molly Bean**, **Stuart Ketteringham**, **Sian Millar**, **Tanya Honor**, **Brenda Campbell**, **Jordin Barclay**, **Nicki Barrett**, **Sean Cavanagh** and all their team for their support and guidance over the season culminating at these championships. Together with the additional training sessions, coaches and parent support – we can honestly say, ensured our Nippers were prepared to the best of their abilities.

Thanks **Jacqui McGregor** and **Guy Edwards** for all their assistance with the water arena set ups pre event and throughout. Thanks **Cameron Rapley** and **Isaac Crothers** for the short notice Sunday IRB call for assistance and **Craig Findlay** covering First Aid.

Hats off to these brave and skilled members volunteering their time for Water Safety – Dave Chadderton, Clayton Millar, Richard Jones, Ethan Rapley, Cameron Rapley, Donnacha Murphy, Claudia Ketteringham, Lauchlan Bean, Belle McBennett, Phil Johnson, Ruby Smith, Eoghan Barrowclough, Isla Barclay, Matt Windle, Tom Linehan, Callum Foley, Les Crockett, Elaine McDonald, Annika Rasmussen and Dale Harrison.



Thanks to all the parents who assisted in transporting gear, kids, enthusiasm and encouragement – your support is testament to the abilities that your kids and our Club thrive and prosper from.

Big thanks to Vicki Rasmussen as the overall Deputy Referee for the Nipper Championships, some challenging decisions to make and be supported by throughout the three days of competition. We are fortunate to have some awesome skilled officials at our Club, so thank you Marni Black, Annika Rasmussen, Dawn Jones, Jesper Rasmussen, Leah Dineen, Samantha Hill, Clare Ketteringham, Conor McComas, Jacqui McGregor and Guy Edwards.

Amidst a tireless weekend, thank you to everyone who helped pack up their areas and thank you **Stuart Clarke**, **Isaac Crothers, Adam Sami, Jacqui McGregor** and **Rob McGregor** who assisted with the overall event pack up on Sunday afternoon.

NIPPER WIND UP

The scheduled colour run and wind up for Nippers was cancelled due to poor weather and COVID restrictions at the time. Our Age Group Managers then made individual arrangements for presentations with a BBQ and icy poles. We will be rescheduling the colour run...!

AGE GROUP MANAGERS AND ASSISTANTS

A massive thank you to our Age Group Managers and their Assistants for your efforts throughout the season. This thanks extends to the many parents who provided: water safety; first aid; beach set up; beach pack up; sausage sizzle assistance; taxi services; morning alarms; gear transport; and managed the tears, fears and fun that is the surf life saving experience!

The season kicked off well with much of the preparation done pre-season but only a few formal roles to fill on day 1. However, it became obvious that this was not going to be a 'normal' season. The Club's thanks can only be even more heartily offered given the disruptions experienced by COVID and some extreme weather events. Further exaggerating the disruption was the passing of the AGM for the U8 girls, **Troy Pickard** and the exit of the AGM for the U12 boys **Chris Sparsi** due to university commitments. Thanks to the parents of these age groups who banded together to fill the voids.

U6s

Kay Smith Luciano Albaytero Wesley Jenkins Edie Bushby Lois Bushby Aishling Walker

U7s

Angela Heppleston Jolene James Debbie Munro Jess Barton Katie Barton Kirra Truter

U8 BOYS

Gareth Rees

U8 GIRLS

Troy Pickard Maison Cox Leisa Hudson Fiona Crockett Liam Harris

U9 BOYS Brett Warner

U9 GIRLS Andrew Brown Holly Brown

There were many new AGMs this season, with 24 new AGM awards. The Club had 16 AGMs plus 8 Youth AGMs that attained their Age Manager Course and WA Youth Age Managers Program awards respectively this season.

U10 BOYS

Drew Brown Ryan Stephenson Mark Sizer

U10 Girls Molly Bean

Claudia Dineen

Stu Ketteringham Clare Ketteringham

U11 GIRLS Sian Millar Clayton Millar

U12 BOYS

Chris Sparsi Nathan Linehan

U12 GIRLS

Tanya Honor Jordin Barclay

U13 BOYS

Nicki Barrett Paul Barrett

U13 GIRLS

Sean Cavanagh Brenton Harris

COMPLETED AGE GROUP MANAGER AWARD

Luciano Albaytero Jordin Barclay Katie Barton Molly Bean Sean Cavanagh Claudia Dineen Brenton Harris Tanya Honor Clare Ketteringham Stuart Ketteringham Nicholas Kimber Sian Millar Gareth Rees Mark Sizer Christopher Sparsi Ryan Stephenson

COMPLETED WA YOUTH AGE GROUP MANAGER AWARD

Katie BartonMyaMolly BeanLiamDrew BrownTilly SClaudia DineenJaydr

Mya Fifield Liam Harris Tilly Stockley Jaydn Swan

AWARDS & RECOGNITION

Brett Warner, the Club's U9 Boys Age Group Manager was a finalist in this year's SLSWA Woodside Nippers Program Volunteer of the Year. Brett's nomination by the Club acknowledges his extended term as an AGM, being the Club's longest standing AGM with 17 years in the role.

WOODSIDE NIPPERS CLUB OF THE YEAR

A final THANK YOU to everyone in the Woodside Nipper program for your contribution, which was recognised by Surf Life Saving WA as the best Club in WA for its delivery of the Nipper Curriculum across four key outcome areas; individual safety, surf awareness, lifesaving and surf sports skills.





U6 & U7 NIPPER MANAGER

Kelly Marshall

I would like to take this opportunity to thank all the amazing Age Group Managers and Age Group Manager Assistants for both the U6 & U7, without these fantastic people/parents, Club days would not be able to run. Your commitment to each age group and working together was outstanding and I thoroughly enjoyed my first year at the Club as a parent and in the newly created role of U6 & U7 Nipper Manager. We all worked together as a team every week which is why the season ran so smoothly with over 200, U6 & U7 kids on the beach.

A big thank you to all the parents who dedicated their time to the U6 & U7 water safety, there were times when the waves hit hard but the kids still came out of the water with smiles on their faces. You all participated in the games (tug of war was fun!) and got the kids in the water, even when the weather wasn't the best, we truly wouldn't have been able to do this without you. Your time and commitment help's the journey of the kids to find 'their motion, in the ocean'.

Across the age groups, I was highly impressed with the support each week from parents, siblings and Club members to make every Club day enjoyable, educational and most importantly FUN... Teamwork, makes the dream work!

These were the youngest age groups, so the focus was on fun and safety, getting the kids to enjoy the









experience, to learn water skills and have a great time and that they did. The kids did AMAZING and it was a pleasure watching each and every one get more and more confident each week.

We kicked off learning about the beach, how to stay safe (at the beach and with the sun) and what to do in case of an emergency. We also visited the Club facilities, where we store all the equipment, and we even visited the lifesaving observation towers. The kids absolutely loved this last part!

Once in full Nippers mode, we split the group into 3 teams, each with an AGM and AGMA. The team rotated and did sand activities (flags, sprints, relay, tug of war) and water activities (board surfing, wade relay, dolphin dive). It was great to see how much our kids loved these

games. We finished the season with an amazing obstacle course and some icy poles to celebrate.

Thank you to all involved, you all played a part in creating a wonderful season for the Mullaloo SLSC nippers!

AGE GROUP MANAGER REPORTS

UNDER 8 BOYS | GARETH REES YELLOW CAPS

The 2021/22 season was like no other, interruptions throughout the season and changes forced upon us due to COVID.

With this in mind we started the season with 56 enthusiastic boys registered to compete in the Woodside



Nippers Club days. My ethos, as written to you all at the beginning of the season was about fun and technique. This was whether the boys came first or last, it was all about the taking part and not separating the groups into skill levels and alienating them, and for the boys to integrate with other boys from different schools to grow confidence and make new friends.

Due to water temperatures, we started the season perfecting flags and sprints and dodgeball (which has always been a favourite), we also did flag relays. As the warmer weather approached and water safety numbers increased, we were able to spend more time in the water perfecting the techniques of sea swimming and boards. I think we could all see the difference from the beginning of the season to the end where confidence in the water had increased 10-fold.

This Season was the first season where the nippers could compete in Carnivals and States. And I think all the children enjoyed this more than Club days, we started off in Quinn's where the boys did amazing in the sprints and flags, we had huge numbers representing the surf Club in the finals more than any other Club. States was in Sorrento where we took a gold and silver in the above events. But we also had 4 boys from the 11 in the sprint's finals.

Thanks to all the parents who had volunteered their time through the week and weekends to help in bringing the Nippers Club days together, without these volunteers we would not have been able to have water activities or had such a successful year.

Stay safe and enjoy your winter sports or time off if you are lucky enough to get a lie in on a Sunday morning.

UNDER 8 GIRLS | TROY PICKARD YELLOW CAPS

The U8 Girls group had a great start to their season, being fully engaged in learning and many even stretching themselves to compete (for the first time!). Much of this enthusiasm was attributable to the energy and leadership of AGM **Troy Pickard**. With Troy's sudden



I. With Troy's sudden passing, it was a collective shock and disruption to this momentum. All the more reason to congratulate Maison Cox, Leisa Hudson, Fiona Crockett and Liam Harris for stepping up to guide and support the group through this difficult time and finish the season.

UNDER 9 GIRLS | ANDREW & HOLLY BROWN GREEN CAPS

This season we had 58 girls registered in the u9's. The first year for Holly and me with this fantastic group of girls. It has been tremendously rewarding, as we established a great, early rapport and trust with the young nipper lifesavers and their parents.



Our focus was on building skills and developing confidence throughout the season while emphasising teamwork and friendship as fundamentals of the surf lifesaving spirit.

Holly was a wonderful role model and inspiration to the girls, bringing huge character and zest to our Sunday morning training sessions, making time to help any of the girls who felt nervous or unsure, coaching and encouraging them until they could overcome their fears and confidently move forwards. Undoubtedly, the presence of a young and enthusiastic coach on the beach has tremendously impacted the positive commitment of surf Club amongst the girls, and we should commend Holly for this!

We have been able to build and establish some strong foundation skills both on the beach and in the surf, and develop a great attitude, not only towards carnival competition but also regarding the key surf Club elements of camaraderie, relishing new friends,



responsibility, understanding how to help and care for those in need, and courage, showing calm control and confidence in times of crises.

Across the age group, I was highly impressed with how the girls were able to encourage and inspire new members with their efforts and improvement with the result that they were all able to do more challenging activities.

By the end of the season, it was encouraging and rewarding to watch the majority of the under 9's take on waves with the fun and confidence required while showing improved levels of surf awareness and basic understanding of surf conditions.

Our Holly-Brownie "MullaWhat MullaWho" Amazing Race was an absolute season highlight & success with the girls. We loved putting it on, testing them, and seeing their faces light up with the excitement and enjoyment of the different tasks and challenges and the thrill of treasure! Thanks so much to the Youth members who assisted us in making this day a success.

Thanks to **Mark Shirley** and **Andy Dalton** for their support and assistance, particularly when we were away from the beach and the group needed to be run. Additionally, thank you to the outstanding and selfless support of water safety and volunteer Mums and Dads throughout the season, consistently enough to ensure we could complete the tasks safely and that no equipment was ever left behind! I look forward to the new season as we advance to Under 10's with more exciting and interesting challenges and just one year before we gain competition status!

UNDER 9 BOYS | BRETT WARNER GREEN CAPS

Well, we managed to get through the season with minimal breaks in transmission. Well almost...

Again, another season slides through our fingers, and yet again maintained the mixture of fun, development and fun!

The differing levels of confidence and abilities were on display and the learning outcomes were priceless, amidst the tears and cheers. The best thing to note was that the level of ability has grown in each individual which enhanced the motivation and collective outcomes of the group.

Our Water Safety team were ever reliable and always had the appreciation and respect from the boys. A big thanks to you all for that.

A massive thanks to the parents for their commitment to bringing the boys down, as the U9's don't drive and there's no bad day at Nippers. An awesome job and personally, really appreciated.

The season ended yet again with Covid-19 showing its ugly head but, fingers crossed, we are on a smooth track for the 2022/23 season.

After 19 years Age Group Managing, I find that the constant reward in all aspects of this role is following the individual journey of each child and watching them overcome fears, questions and doubts all associated to what we are surrounded by and that is the Ocean.

To the U9 boys, we hope to see you at the U10 flag for the 2022/23 season. To the parents, I thank you (again) for your commitment and hope that you continue to be a part of Mullalloo SLS Club and foster the passion for SLS, the ocean and the sand.

Remember always take time to smile, as it's the only curve that puts things straight.

In closing and in the words of Dr Suess 'We all have the ability to learn, just in different ways and on different days'.

See you on the sand. VKR

UNDER 10 BOYS | DREW BROWN LIGHT BLUE CAPS

As another awesome season draws to a close, we can take the time to reflect on what has been an epic introduction to fully fledged Nippers for the under 10 boys.



We began the season with 39 boys registered and were able to hold numbers in the high 20s for the whole season and I am unimaginably proud of what they all achieved. There were highs and lows but there was never a boy left feeling lonely or like he doesn't belong, the camaraderie formed by the boys this season is unparalleled and is something I am incredibly proud of.

We enjoyed being introduced to Nipper Carnivals which were a big step-up from the Little Nipper Carnivals of previous years. The boys showed their competitive yet chivalrous spirit at each and every event and seemed to enjoy mingling with nippers from all over. I have always stressed to the boys the importance of giving everything they try 100% and time and again they demonstrated this.

My season's highlight was undoubtedly the Nipper States Weekend, in which the boys were faced with swell like nothing they had ever seen before and managed to come out alive. Each and every one of the boys was chomping at the bit to get into the water and give it their best shot, which they did. The pride I felt when I watched **James Lee, Hugo Brierley, Ryan Cavanaugh** and **Dane Sudintas** celebrate an awesome surf teams heat placing first, before an emotional yet professional acceptance of fourth place in the final cannot be put into words. Watching **Max Macdonald** cross the line for fifth in the 1km beach run, or seeing just how much beach flags meant to **Nathaniel Leeks** showed me how much these boys put into the season.

To the water safety and parent volunteers of the season, I cannot thank you enough, without your volunteering week in and week out from a specific set of parents, this season would not have been possible thankyou especially to **Elaine McDonald, Cathy Lee** and **Paul Brierley** for always volunteering as water safety for two full hours every Sunday, I couldn't have operated this season without your help.





To the boys, I want to say congratulations and thank you. Thank you for always giving me a laugh, thank you for always giving your best and thank you for all the good times in between. From **Lucas Sizers** creative quips to **Miller Stephenson's** effort always, to **George Samardali** and **Harley Williams** tenacity, I have loved every bit of this season.

Finally, to **Mark Sizer** and **Ryan Stephenson**, I once again issue my overwhelming appreciation for all your help this season, when Ryan and I took on the responsibility of Co-AGM's at the start of this season, we talked about the challenges we may face in the season and one of the largest was going to be a lack of help. Luckily Mark stepped up to assist us and has been incredible all season, we really have been a wellfunctioning team all year. Bring on 2023!

UNDER 10 GIRLS | MOLLY BEAN & CLAUDIA DINEEN

LIGHT BLUE CAPS

This year was my first as age group manager (assisted the previous year). It definitely was a great experience. The Surf Club season was filled with memories, laughs, tears, smiles, races and much more!

We had 55 girls register to be apart of our fun group and we kept growing throughout the season. Many thanks to all the parents that helped every Sunday with anything and everything. This could be carrying equipment, water safety, taking tents to carnivals and help coaching the kids.

Now my big thanks goes to all 55 Under 9 girls. Thanks for all the fun we've had every Sunday. This year was the third year the kids got to compete. I am so proud of the girls and how far they have come since the first carnival. As we all know, Mullaloo usually doesn't have waves, so going to a beach with waves to compete is really challenging. Especially when we saw at some carnivals IRB's flip in the waves! However, by the end of the season, we had more than 20 girls competing and having a go, which was fantastic to see and a huge improvement.

I am so proud of all the hard work they have put in and how excited they were to do more every week.

UNDER 11 BOYS | STU & CLARE KETTERINGHAM PURPLE CAPS

Well, what can we say, the end of our first season as AGM's of the U11 Boys, and it has been BRILLIANT!

We have had a good solid core of boys in attendance every week, and on the whole averaged 20-25 boys every Sunday. These boys are of varying abilities, from "seasoned" nippers to newcomers at the Club. On both fronts, it has been to our absolute delight and pleasure to watch these boys grow in strength, confidence and resilience week in week out. Resilience of which I would have never thought possible in boys of their age. But they certainly have it, bags of it. Their skill development across all activities has been remarkable. We really couldn't be prouder!

Participation at carnivals started off with 6 competitors on average taking part building up to the pinnacle of the season, Nipper States, where we fielded 11 Nippers, all of which strived for victory, competed hard and held their heads high at all times. Highs and lows, such passion, commitment and resilience, an absolute pleasure to behold.

Thank you to all the parent help and support for water safety, ferrying your boys to and from Club and training,



getting boards out at the start of the session and washing and putting away, helping out with recording on the beach, for all the assistance with Sausage Sizzle when called upon and last but not least – pack up and set up. We cannot thank you enough, for without you, this wouldn't happen.

We hope you have a very safe and enjoyable winter / off season if you are lucky enough to get a break. See you on the other side.

UNDER 11 GIRLS | SIAN MILLAR PURPLE CAPS

What a fantastic season for our 11 Girls and we can't believe it's all over!

This season we had a large group of 43 Nippers that were such an inclusive, caring group of girls who consistently supported and encouraged each other. You all should be very proud of all your achievements over the season. It has been amazing watching you build on your skills and for some of you overcome your fears. The best of all, were the beautiful friendships made over the season.

Our Club days were well attended each week and were filled with learnings, fun activities, and a lot of laughter! We were very fortunate to have awesome u11 parents who stepped up and assisted with water safety, Beach setup/pack-up and generally being great support. **Clayton Millar** and I are extremely grateful to you all for your help.

We had a small participation group at carnivals which as the season progressed saw a few more girls join and compete, and even joined for Nippers States at Scarborough. Our competitive group of girls had trained hard and came away with a few medals which was a great achievement and should be very proud of themselves considering the huge surf conditions over the weekend. Great to end the season on a high!

Clayton and I would like to thank you all for a memorable summer and will be back for another great season!

UNDER 12 BOYS | CHRIS SPARSI, NATHAN LINEHAN

DARK BLUE CAPS

U12 Boys had 32 boys registered for the 21/22 season.

The kids all had a great season and their water skills have grown tremendously. It has been a pleasure to watch the boys grow and develop throughout the season.

Club Day on a Sunday may not have gone to plan as we had changes within the AGM position. Thank you to **Nathan Linehan** who happily took the boys and got them competition ready. Thank you to the parents who helped with water safety, running of points day and just their willingness to help. This makes the group activities on a Sunday a lot easiest to manage.

This year we had a great turn out for carnivals. The boys just "had a go"! This season we had 10, U12 Boys who participated in the Nipper Qualifiers for Ironman – this is a huge number. Out of that10 we had 4 represent our Club in the Nipper Championships at Scarborough – Olly Browne, Harry Linehan, Patrick Campbell and Chris Jiang.

Olly took out the 1st Place position. **Harry** took out 3rd position and **Patrick** came in 9th position. We are truely proud of their achievements.

Enjoy your winter sports and we hope to see you on the sand for the 2022/23 season.



UNDER 12 GIRLS | JORDIN BARCLAY & TANYA HONOR

DARK BLUE CAPS

What a great season! It was great to see the U12 Girls continue to develop their surf skills and also come together as good friends and team mates.

We had a few new girls this year who fit right into the group, which is a testament to the culture of the girls and the Club.

We started the year with 45, U12 girls, and routinely had over 20 girls competing in carnivals. The girls always had a blast on Club days and they really benefited from the extra training through the week. Thanks to the Club and the coaches for facilitating!

We had a great time in Bunbury (again) for the Country Carnival and I think we are all looking forward to the next one.

The girls were warriors in very challenging conditions for the State Championships. It's amazing to see what these girls can do, they have truly grown from being kids on the beach into athletes.

Many thanks to our ever helpful parents, it is appreciated every time you volunteer to help and even better to share some laughs on the beach.

We exited the season on such a high and I hope that all the girls jump in again next season. On behalf of **Tanya** and **Jordin**, thanks for a wonderful summer!

UNDER 13 BOYS | NICKI BARRETT RED CAPS

The 2021/22 season saw the end of Nippers for our U13s. For some boys (and parents), this has meant 7 years at Mullaloo developing their sports skills, beach safety and lifesaving knowledge. To see how far they have come from their first days at Surf Club has been so rewarding. Firm friendships have been forged during Club days, training and competition. Their sportsmanship, as always, has been admirable. Longtime members have welcomed the new, as we strive to build a great group of





boys moving into Youth next year.

The conditions for our Club days and carnivals this year were the best we have ever had. This has enabled some of the more hesitant boys to step outside their comfort zone and put in a really big effort across the season.

We had a great group of families head to Bunbury for the country carnival. It was excessively hot and totally exhausting for the spectators and the boys did us proud. They all had fun and worked together to help Mullaloo in a successful Country carnival campaign.

Finn Barrett, Darcey Howe and **Lucas Guymer** did their Surf Rescue Certificate this season and are now on the way to being new lifesavers to keep the public safe. The skills they have gained will serve them well both on and off the beach.

State Championships at Scarborough was the culmination of our final year in Nippers. We had 9 boys represent the Club in Individual and team events. **Finn Barrett, Austin Jacques, Oscar Mahar, Taiyo**

Findlay, Tadhg Barrowclough and **Izayah Wakely** all qualified and competed in individual events.

Oscar placed 6th in flags, **Finn** placed 8th in boards and 9th in iron, **Tadhg** placed 11th in iron, **Bryce** placed 10th in 1km beach run. Our beach relay team of **Finn**, **Taiyo**, **Darcy** and **Bryce** placed a very close (and super exciting) 4th. In the board relay **Finn**, **Tadhg** and **Austin** came 8th. The Cameron relay team of **Finn**, **Tadhg**, **Taiyo** and **Bryce** also came 8th.

For me, the most exciting moment of the season was when Mullaloo team A of **Tadhg** and **Finn** came 3rd in the board rescue event. They have worked so hard as a team over the last few years and really deserved the medal they fought so hard for.

I am immensely proud of all of our under 13 boys and how far they have come during their journey as Nippers. I'm excited for them moving into Youth next year and can't wait to see where they will go on the pathways available to them in the surf lifesaving movement. Congratulations and well done boys!



UNDER 13 GIRLS | SEAN CAVANAGH & BRENTON HARRIS RED CAPS

In the lead up to the season, I went on a recruitment drive to pull together an U13 girls AGM team that could cover for me every second weekend during the school term. Thanks very much to **Samantha** and **Brian Hill**, **Brenton Harris, Fiona Crockett**, and **Nick Kimber** who all stepped up and worked together on those weekends to ensure that the Club days continued to run smoothly. We also had a fabulous parent group of Water Safety, IRB crew & driver and officials, who were always there to help each Sunday and at Carnivals. Thanks parents!

We had 38 girls enrol at the start of the season, 10 being new members. We had about 18-20 regularly attending Club days throughout the season and 12 girls competing at the carnivals and States.

The Country Carnival is always a highlight of the season, with a festive atmosphere down in Bunbury, great weather and some good competition. It is always a great bonding time for the girls who enjoy the camaraderie as much as the competition.

The Beach flags have been a strength of this group over the Nipper years, and this year was no different with four girls making it to the final 12 at the State Qualifiers. We ended up with **Mariella Alsford** getting the Silver medal and **Genevieve Crockett** the Bronze. Our beach relay team of **Hayley Cavanagh**, **Mia Smith**, **Genevieve Crockett** and **Mariella Alsford** also fared well in States narrowly missing out on a Bronze Medal in the final. Some other highlights were **Hannah McComas** coming 11th in the Surf Final and **Jessica Jones** coming 2nd in her Board semi (after getting in from reserve) and then coming 9th in the Board final. Although the girls did not place in any of the team water events, they showed great courage to enter and get through the large waves at Scarborough Beach. Special mention to **Tayte Kimber** who took a nasty head knock from a board in Saturday's water events but came through the next day to compete with her teammates.

U13 Club Points champion was **Hayley Cavanagh** winning by 4 points over **Genevieve Crockett**, a swap on last year's results! They have had a great rivalry over their Nipper years. **Hina Haywood** and **Eva Hill** were awarded the Most Improved trophies. **Hina** has progressed from not getting around the cans in the swim and boards to managing to do both after much perseverance and determination. **Eva's** points day results over the year showed a huge improvement from prior years and she finished the season as one of the of strongest swimmers and placed in the boards and beach events.

The AGM trophies were presented to **Tayte Kimber** and **Jessica Jones**, both of whom attended regular midweek training for boards and weekend iron training, attended most Sundays and took part in the Carnivals and States with enthusiasm and determination.

Throughout the season the girls enjoyed their Sunday activities in the water and on the beach. A few of the girls did their SRC in the January break. We had a small group who attended mid-week and extra training around the many other activities the girls do – from dancing and athletics, to netball, swimming and calisthenics – they are a busy bunch!

I am hoping there will be a good contingent of girls continuing into Youth and exploring the different pathways offered through the Club, where they can continue their friendships and contribute to the success of Mullaloo SLSC.



WOODSIDE NIPPER AWARDS

For the 2021/22 Season

NIPPER ACTIVITIES CLUB AWARDS

AGE GROUP MANAGER AWARDS

U9 Boys - Kain Raszkawajski U9 Girls - Georgia Shirley U10 Boys - Nathaniel Leeks U10 Girls - Ada Heaton U11 Boys - Benjamin Chadderton U11 Girls - Stella Herring U12 Boys – Bowan Biddle U12 Girls – Aoife Dunne U13 Boys - Bryce Lyons U13 Girls - Tayte Kimber and Jess Jones

MOST IMPROVED AWARD

U9 Boys – Ewan Browne
U9 Girls – Luella Berry
U10 Boys – Finley Riley
U10 Girls – Aria Berry
U11 Boys – Xavier Drage
U11 Girls – Liliana Shimoni
U12 Boys – Corey Harrison
U12 Girls – Anais Barclay
U13 Boys – Izayah Wakely
U13 Girls – Hina Haywood and Eva Hill

POINTS DAY CHAMPIONS

U10 Boys - Ryan Cavanagh U10 Girls - Hannah Wolmarans U11 Boys - Liam Barrowclough U11 Girls - Ava Millar U12 Boys - Patrick Campbell U12 Girls - Elizabeth Snyman U13 Boys - Finn Barrett U13 Girls - Hayley Cavanagh **POINTS DAY RUNNER UP** U10 Boys - Nathaniel Leeks

- U10 Girls Anzy Haywood U11 Boys - David Ariano U11 Girls - Amelia Hill and Gabriella Jackson
- U12 Boys Chris Jiang
- U12 Girls Alexis Harvey
- U13 Boys Tadhg Barrowclough
- U13 Girls Genevieve Crockett

NIPPER CHAMPIONSHIPS

STATE CHAMPIONS

U12 Male Surf Race **Oliver Browne**

U12 Ironman **Oliver Browne**

U12 Male Board Race **Harry Linehan**

U11 Male Beach Flags **Toby Kimber**

U11 Female Cameron Relay Katie Firth, Hazel Foley, Gracie Kendrick, Ava Millar

U10 Female 1km Run **Ellie Murphy**



SILVER MEDALLISTS

U13 Female Beach Flags **Mariella Alsford**

U12 Male Cameron Relay Oliver Browne, Patrick Campbell, Chris Jiang, **Harry Linehan**

U11 Male Board Race **Liam Barrowclough**

U11 Male Cameron Relay Liam Barrowclough, Benjamin Chadderton, Arthur Ketteringham, Kohen Prosper

U11 Male Board Rescue Liam Barrowclough, Benjamin Chadderton

U11 Female Surf Team Hazel Foley, Amelia Hill, Gabriella Jackson, Ava Millar

U11 Female Board Rescue Amelia Hill, Gabriella Jackson

U11 Female Board Relay Hazel Foley, Gabriella Jackson, Ava Millar

BRONZE MEDALLISTS

U13 Female Beach Flags **Genevieve Crockett**

U13 Male Board Rescue Finn Barrett, Tadhg Barrowclough

U12 Ironman **Harry Linehan**

U12 Male Surf Team Oliver Browne, Chris Jiang, Harry Linehan, Noah Pearson

U12 Female Board Rescue Alexis Harvey, Elizabeth Snyman

U11 Ironman **Liam Barrowclough**

U11 Male Beach Sprint **Kohen Prosper**

LITTLE NIPPER CHAMPIONSHIPS

GOLD MEDALLISTS

U8 Male Beach Flags Harper Mountjoy

U8 Female Board Race **Aubree Wynyard**



Finn Barrett

BRONZE MEDALLISTS

U12/U13 Male 4x50m Obstacle Relay Finn Barrett, Tom Linehan, Aidan Mills, **Cayden Protzman**

U13 Male Line Throw Tom Linehan, Aidan Mills

U11 Male 50m Freestyle with Fins **Patrick Campbell**

U11 Male 100m Patient Tow with Fins **Oliver Browne, Patrick Campbell**

U10 Male 100m Obstacles Koga Haywood

U10 Male 100m Patient Tow with Fins Benjamin Chadderton, Koka Haywood

SILVER MEDALLISTS

U8 Female Beach Flags **Anaya Holland**

BRONZE MEDALLISTS

U8 Male Beach Sprints **Harper Mountjoy**



U11 Male 35m Brick Carry **Oliver Browne**

U11 Male Line Throw Patrick Campbell, Harry Linehan

U11 Male 100m Patient Tow with Fins **Chris Jiang**

U11 Male 100m Patient Tow with Fins **Harry Linehan**

U10/U11 Male 4x50m Obstacle Relay Oliver Browne, Patrick Campbell, Chris Jiang, **Harry Linehan**

SILVER MEDALLISTS

U10 Male 100m Patient Tow with Fins **Cian McConnon, Scott Mills**

U11 Male 100m Obstacles **Oliver Browne**

U12 Male 100m Obstacles **Finn Barrett**

U12 Male 50m Brick Carry **Finn Barrett**

U12 Male 50m Freestyle with Fins



YOUTH

Emma Bamforth | Manager Youth Development

Our large group of Youth were once again involved in a variety of activities throughout the season volunteering their time on patrol, stepping up into Age Group Manager and Age Group Manager Assistant roles for the Nippers, involved with running and assisting training courses and representing the Club at competitions in all event categories. It was great to see so many Youth and their families involved this season and the assistance by all has been very much appreciated.

A huge thanks goes out to the amazing Age Group Managers who kept the Youth entertained while teaching them surf skills during the interactive Sunday Club days. **Trish Butler** and **Katherine Stokes** (U14 Girls), **Simon Foley** and **Troy Baird** (U14 Boys), **Paul Bean** and **Courtney Fyfe** (U15 Boys) and **Louis Cheeseman** (U15 Girls). These amazing parents made the Sunday Club days a fun and social event while still ensuring the essential skills of surf lifesaving including beach sprints, beach flags, ocean swimming, board paddling and ski racing as well as essential first aid and ocean rescue skills were practiced and refined. Our Club days and carnivals were so successful due to your dedication, enthusiasm and participation.

Thank you also to all those parents who provided assistance when called upon for all those additional activities that make our Club days and carnivals run smoothly including beach set up and pack up, sausage sizzles, transporting and setting up tents, carting ski trailers, assisting with Chase the Ace and providing support at our Club social events.

SOUTH WEST YOUTH CAMP

The season was kicked off with the South West Youth Camp held in the October school holidays. The camp was again a huge success with over 80 Youth in attendance, our largest group yet. This large group was managed by the fabulous team leaders Amanda Lee, Louis Cheeseman, Trevor Bulley, Cameron Rapley, Simon Foley, Rohan Cox, Eric Murphy and Emma Bamforth supported by our Youth Leaders Annika Rasmussen, Edie Bushby, Jade Bamforth, Molly Bean, Ryan Hewitt, Will Ketteringham, Aron Cook and Caden Hawker. The camp involved a number of activities including canoeing, bush tucker tour, abseiling, the Maze, treetop high rope adventure, outdoor cinema and of course walking along the scenic Cape to Cape track. I think the favourite activity was the Bush Tucker tour and I was impressed at how adventurous the Youth were in trying (and devouring) all the food that was on offer!











by **Drew Brown** and **Edie Bushby**. Congrats to these members for representing Mullaloo with pride. We received excellent feedback from the camp organisers on their impeccable behaviour and polite manners! We hope to see you practicing those leadership skills you learnt in the years to come as you continue through your surf Club journey.



SLSWA YOUTH AWARDS

Several of our Mullaloo Youth were nominated for the annual SLSWA Youth awards in the areas of Youth of the year, Youth official of the year and Youth lifesaver of the year. These awards recognise the outstanding contribution of Youth members to surf lifesaving across WA coast. Nominees for these awards were **Leah**



SLSWA TOAD AND RISE UP CAMP

The TOAD and RISE Up camps were run in January by SLSWA. The TOAD camp for the U14s and U15's held at Ern Halliday was attended by our Mullaloo representatives **Bethany Bamforth, Donnacha Murphy, Liam Harris** and **Ruby Smith** while the RISE UP Camp for the U17's held at Point Peron was attended

l to r: Liam Harris, Donnacha Murphy, Bethany Bamforth and Ruby Smith



44 MULLALOO SLSC 2021/22 ANNUAL REPORT

Dineen (Youth Official), Ethan Rapley (Youth Lifesaver) and Jade Bamforth (Youth Club Achiever). Jade has successfully made it through as a finalist with results to be announced in October. The commitment to Mullaloo Surf Club and to SLSWA shown by these nominees is an inspiring achievement. They are such an asset to our Club. Congratulations to you all and best of luck to Jade for the final announcements in October.

SLSWA ROOKIE LIFEGUARD

Four of our Youth members attended the Rookie Lifeguard course run by SLSWA and they were put through their paces both in and out of the water. This course is a great initiative paving the way for future paid work opportunities within Surf Life Saving.



YOUTH SOCIAL EVENTS

It is so important for our Youth to come together as a group through the many social events held by the Club. The quiz night held to raise money for one of our Youth members and family who have been going through a tough time was well supported by the Youth, the Seniors and their families. The day at Adventure World was great fun and was enjoyed just as much by the parents who attended as the Youth.

Many Youth participated in the social Christmas Eve paddle and post paddle BBQ, the Ted Scott Marathon and Big Kahuna surf sport events held throughout the year. We also had a huge turnout for our final Club day, which involved a friendly team challenge against the Royal Lifesavers followed by an end of season BBQ breakfast.

Another great season for our Youth.

Winter training is already well underway and I look forward to seeing everyone back on the beach next season.







MEMBERSHIP

Guy Edwards | Manager Membership

The Club saw the continuing influence of the Covid-19 pandemic permeate throughout our season. However, we were able to progress without too much interference. The Membership process for renewing members and new members was achieved using the SLSA Members Area. I encourage all Members to make use of their Members Area not only for renewing but for viewing patrol rosters, keeping track of their patrol hours and awards, viewing Club documents, updating your profiles, and adding additional family members. The Members Area is a vital connection between each Member, the Club and Surf Lifesaving Australia.

The biggest event for the Membership Team is the Club's open day. For the second year our new Members registered and paid online on the day. The day could not run as smooth as it did without a huge input from members volunteering their time. On the day we had Alison Gerrard, Natalie Godwin, Kay Smith, Richard and Jenny Orme, Jeff Baker and Club Director Jacqui McGregor welcoming our new members and assisting with answering their millions of questions. Marni and Ellie Black, Penny Fortmann, Jamie and Fay Gilbert, Peggy Bakalis and Simon Spencer assisted our new members register online. The catering team of Rob McGregor, Calvin Teng, Cheryl Edwards, Alex Upston and Andrew Bloomer kept our volunteers and new members happy with food and drinks from the bar including a very successful sausage sizzle on the balcony.



46 MULLALOO SLSC 2021/22 ANNUAL REPORT

HONOURS AND AWARDS COMMITTEE

A responsibility of the Membership Portfolio is to provide secretarial assistance to the Honours and Awards Committee. Life Member Barbara Loudon was appointed Chairperson in February 2022 following an unfortunate accident forcing Life Member Jeff Davidson to step down from this role.

The Committee is comprised of the following Life Members, **Alison Gerrard**, **Dave Cronk**, **Mandy Lee** and members **Katrina West**, **Sandy Clarke**, **Tracey Tenaglia**, **Rob McGregor** and **John Dooley**. Barbara wishes to pass on the committee's heartfelt thanks to past members of the committee, Life Member **Godfrey Lawson** and member **Lyn Brosens** for their tireless work for the committee over many seasons.

The SLSWA Rewards and Recognition framework allows for members to be recognised in the following areas, Training, Assessing, Facilitating, Officiating, Coaching, Age Manager and Patrol Service. Thank you to Committee members, **Tracey** and **Sandy**, for their assistance in researching member's information, qualifications and patrol service records for presentation for verification to SLSA allowing recognition of our worthy eligible volunteers.

SLSA length of tenure awards are available for Club Members who have been members of SLSA for 25, 30, ... 80 years (SLSWA Long Service Award). Members may personally apply for these awards through their SLSA Members Area.

All criteria for these various awards are outlined in SLSA Rewards and Recognition Framework September 2021 and SLSWA Reward and Recognition Framework June 2021, both of which can be found in your members area library.

LIFE MEMBERS EVALUATION PANEL

The Life Member Evaluation Panel is a subset of the Honours and Awards Committee comprising of a minimum of 3 Life Members, one who is the Chairperson, and at least one member who is not a Life Member. This panel has convened several times this season to discuss Members who have met minimum criteria set by the Club and to evaluate them against the Club values. Following robust discussions, the Chairperson provided the Board with the panel's recommendation. The Board has the final determination. Congratulations to **Sandy Clarke, Vivienne Greenfield** and **Greg Kelleher**, worthy recipients of Life Membership of the Mullaloo Surf Life Saving Club.

MEMBERSHIP STATUS CHANGED FROM ACTIVE TO LONG SERVICE

Members, having achieved 10 years of Active Patrol Duty as a Bronze Medal award holder, may request a change of Membership Status from Active to Long Service. This season 6 members applied for Long Service Status and were approved.

Alistair Cook
Robert Young
Anna Young

Laura Edmonds Sam Wood Richard Calnon

MULLALOO SLSC MEMBERSHIP

The Club's membership numbers swelled this year with a 10.5% increase over last year. This increase came from our Nippers and Nipper parents. As our Nipper cohort grows, we require more and more parents to assist not only on Club Day but in other parts of the Nipper program and the Club as well. We are no different to all other volunteer organisations in needing members to step up to help the Club to operate. Think about putting your hand up when asked as it is always rewarding being a volunteer and we have great mentors who are always willing to guide along the way.

MEMBERSHIP CATEGORIES

CATEGORY	TOTAL NUMBER OF MEMBERS			
CALEGORI	2021/22	2020/21	2019/20	
Active (18 years +)	244	238	259	
Active (15–18 years)	75	83	69	
Youth (13 – 15 years)	112	97	80	
Nippers (5 – 13 years)	755	701	661	
Award Members	180	163	185	
Active Reserve	2	3	2	
Long Service	99	96	69	
Life Member	28	26	24	
Past Active	8	9	10	
General	853	713	751	
Honorary	12	14	11	
TOTAL	2,369	2,143	2,121	



ACCESSIBILITY AND INCLUSION

Inclusion is an attitude – where people of all abilities feel welcome to play and belong to a community environment, being valued for who they are and the contribution they make.

Last season the Board decided to make accessibility and inclusion activities a new portfolio of the Club to sit under the Development group. The Accessibility and Inclusion portfolio will also organise the Club's mental health and wellbeing activities. The portfolio aims to:

- support Club members by providing information and resources to help create an inclusive beach environment for everyone; and
- to supply information about what families and participants should expect when participating in Club programs or visiting Mullaloo beach.

The Accessibility and Inclusion team is chaired by **Sandy Clarke**, with the members of the team being **Jacqui McGregor, Dara Mills, Ava Bushby, Laura Edmunds, Rosanne Barrowclough, Nissa Steinberg** and **Yvonne McCord**.

COMMUNITY INCLUSION DAY

The Accessibility and Inclusion team partnered with APM Communities to launch the Club's inaugural Community Inclusion Day. The Hon **Albert Jacob** JP, Mayor of the City of Joondalup, acknowledged and celebrated the Club's attributes, highlighting the Club's exemplary role as a volunteer run organisation. Mayor Jacob noted the broad cross section of "opportunities for life" that Mullaloo SLSC offers for all ages and abilities and that these opportunities are not just limited to Club members.

Guest Speaker, **Madison Heady** (a running enthusiast with cerebral palsy) provided a fabulous insight into



48 MULLALOO SLSC 2021/22 ANNUAL REPORT

what it meant to be navigating life with a disability. Maddie had the crowd transfixed on her story, which highlighted the need for us all to consider how to create pathways for inclusion and support.

A huge thanks goes to the following organisations for donating their time, expertise and (in some cases) their produce to make the day such a success: **Irene McCormack Catholic College, Bakers Delight, Second Bite, Fresh Frontiers, City of Joondalup** and guest speaker **Madison Heady**.

Exhibitors included, City of Joondalup Supporting Disability and Inclusion program, APM Communities, Carers WA, Kookaburra Kids, Ability One, Cycling without Age, Mullaloo Surf Shop, Mullaloo Mariners, Mullaloo Masters, Lifesaving Services, Education, Surf Boats, IRB Racing, Beachies and My Home.

Sincere thanks to the many Mullaloo volunteers who helped with set up and pack down, morning tea, sausage sizzle, water safety and displays.

WESTFIELD LOCAL HEROES

The "Westfield Local Heroes" funds won by **Dara Mills** last season were put to good use this season. The funds contributed to:

- an extension to the Beach Access Mat
- equipment for the Mariner Program
- a new Beach Walker
- incidentals for the Community Inclusion Day





BEACH ACCESS MAT

The beach mat was a great success throughout the season, with the public and members enjoying easy access from the car park to the water's edge. Maintenance and upkeep of the mat was an ongoing commitment by members. Huge shout out to **Dara Mills** for managing the team to ensure the mat was safe and ready for use each day. Thank you **Nat Godwin, Sam and Paul Bean, Yuko and Paul Haywood, Melissa, Paul** and **Hugo Brierley, Carl, Caleb** and **Scott Mills, Penny Fortmann, Jo Waller, Sandy Clarke, Maren Scriven, Jude Harlow, Sam Browne, Matt Windle** and **Peter McCord.**

FATHERING PROJECT

Club members provided great support of The Fathering Project session at Mullaloo beach. A big shout out to **Dara Mills** for coordinating and big thanks to **Trevor Bulley, Stuart Clarke, Caleb Mills, Nat Godwin, Maren** Scriven, Edie Bushby, Sophie Mills, Lois Bushby, Isabelle Mahon, Elise Dagnia and Jo Waller – all did an awesome job introducing the children and fathers to many fun activities at the beach.



SLSA WOMEN'S MENTORING PROGRAM

The 12 month program promotes women within Surf Life Saving, facilitating empowerment, support and leadership skills which can be applied to their paid roles inside and outside of Surf Life Saving, volunteer activities and everyday life.

Ava Bushby was selected as a Mentee and had this to say about the program, "The women's mentoring program has allowed me to connect with my mentor from Bondi Surf Life Saving Club, which has been great, as I have been able to see how my mentor has gotten her surf club to where I would like ours to be in a few years. We do Zoom calls once a month, of which she has assisted me with my personal development and provided me with ideas and actions I have implemented at our Club in the disability area. I would recommend this program to anyone that wants to start a new initiative, wants to develop themselves, and loves learning from others."



ALL-TERRAIN WHEELCHAIR

The group worked hard to lodge a successful application for the All-terrain Wheelchair Access for National Parks and Beaches Grant which was supported by the **Department of Communities**. The Grant enabled the Club to purchase an all-terrain wheelchair for use by the public at Mullaloo beach.

Thanks to the **City of Joondalup** for building a storage unit for the all-terrain wheelchair using the Master Locksmiths Access Key (MLAK) as an innovative system that enables people with disabilities to gain 24/7 access to a network of public facilities.



MULLALOO MARINERS

Through the leadership of **Dara Mills** and **Ava Bushby**, the Club launched its Mariner's Program on 27 November 2021, a modified and structured Nippers program for all abilities that ran as a stand alone service on a Saturday morning, once a month from November through to March. The program featured modified Nippers beach and water activities such as games, running, beach flags, wading, swimming and boards.

Operated entirely by volunteers, the program ensured that people with disabilities and their parents were involved in developing surf skills and lifesaving like their siblings, friends and others on the beach.

The program is designed for members aged 6 years and above with a disability, including physical, intellectual and learning difficulties which can be modified to suit an individual participant's needs so everyone can be included in our Club activities. It is supported by a team of volunteers, including: **Paula Alsford, Leo Alsford, Angie Brown, Nat Godwin** and **Scott Mills.**

APM GROUP

The Club's Accessibility and Inclusion team has maintained a good working relationship with APM Communities, by hosting the City of Joondalup's Accessible Beach's Committee meetings. The Club's Accessibility and Inclusion team has been part of this Committee since 2020.

Accessible Beaches is an Access group bringing together stakeholders operating in the northern suburbs with an interest in increasing accessibility of the beaches in the Northern Corridor.

It has been wonderful to see the Committee successful in gaining accessibility lockers at Sorrento and Mullaloo, with a third approved for Hillarys Marina. Increased community awareness through signage and access ramping have been included in the City of Joondalup's Access and Inclusion Plan 2023/24.





SURF SPORTS

Cameron Rapley | General Manager Surf Sports

Surf Sports Management Portfolio Surf Sports Events | Coaching | Competition

The 2021/22 Surf sports season was our second as a management team. The team once again made up of **Dawn Jones** as Competition Manager, **Julie Rapley** as Events Manager and **Troy Baird** as Coaching Manager. We worked exceptionally well together assisting each other across all roles to ensure we provided the best possible events and coaching for all our members.

In the competition role Dawn was once again amazing in organising our competitors in all aspects from board leasing to carnival entries, from Surf League to Championships, all the while officiating most of our events. With a new entry system to navigate through her countless hours of doing the admin side of our competition season, entering competitors, ensuring qualifications are done and chasing up member entry fees is sometimes underestimated but without her efforts we would not have even made it to the start line.

In our events portfolio Julie was her ever efficient self in organising our Club events of the **Dave Wilson Kahuna**, the **Ted Scott Marathon** that thankfully went ahead without disruptions this year and was a great spectacle. She also coordinated an IRB carnival and the Woodside Nipper Qualifiers (one of the biggest carnivals of the year). These events bought in a significant amount of funds into our Club. Julie's coordination of many of our members that assisted in these events was amazing and a massive task that allows us all to enjoy these events. Thanks to all that helped Julie make these events happen.

In the coaching Manager role Troy took on a bigger role. He increased his involvement in coaching and was running sessions across boards, skis and iron all season. He was assisted with a growing number of Club coaches that together allowed us to facilitate more sessions across all disciplines which will pay dividends in years to come. Thanks to all our coaches, the cornerstone of our competition and a vital part of our competition development. Planning has already commenced for next season and with an increased off season training schedule, sessions tailored for development, new faces and our dedicated existing team of coaches there are exciting times ahead in coaching at Mullaloo.

We are blessed with a large and dedicated number of competition officials at Mullaloo so thanks for your dedication

to competition and your tireless efforts throughout the season. A special mention also must go to **Phil Dee** for conducting all our gym inductions across the year. Thanks Phil, your diligence and manner is appreciated in this role.

Surf sports plays an important part within our Club. Along with improving our skills used in the many lifesaving services our Club provides, members enjoy the health benefits that come with training for competition. It can also provide pathways for members to become involved with coaching and officiating. Both these are important to our success and come with opportunities for members to play a vital role and be a part our Clubs competition success. These opportunities open pathways and develop life skills that can be taken into our work and education lives away from the beach. Our Club is great at facilitating these pathways in our surf sports, lifesaving and education areas so I encourage all members to consider how as a Club we can help each other and upskill yourself at the same time.

Finally, our competitors once again were amazing. We are continuing our strong growth phase with good numbers in our youth age groups, bringing enthusiasm and energy to everything they do and our master's continuing to impress. Our open athletes across multiple disciplines are starting to perform and bring in valuable points, podiums and state titles. With the goal of sustained success in the coming years for our Club we are on track but with still with a lot of work to do. We have great representation from Mullaloo in all aspects of competition. Our surf boat area is expanding at an impressive rate with a new leadership group, we have state champions from lifesaving competition, the beach arena, water arena and the IRB team claimed their 5th straight state championship. With The Aussies at Scarboro next season and the boarders open for travel many opportunities are opening up for competition and we are well poised to take the challenge on and continue on a pathway of success for Mullaloo.

Thanks to those who I have worked with through the year. I think we have all worked well together to ensure as a Club we have provided a positive member experience and I look forward to continuing developing opportunities for our members in all aspects of our Club and look forward to ongoing success.



SURF SPORTS EVENTS

Julie Rapley | Manager Surf Sports Events

This season saw a conscious decision to run carnivals that would give us reward for effort, which would generate some income for the Club. Those who have been involved in assisting with our carnivals will know that regardless of how many competitors are entered the same amount of work goes into the organising and setting up of a carnival. Therefore carnivals where we could receive all the entry fees are more beneficial for us as a Club and as volunteers. We are very aware of the extra workload that has been placed on our members over the last few years.

We started the events calendar bu hosting the IRB Championships. Anyone who was brave enough to come and help volunteer, or as a supporter will remember that it was a true winter's day. Regardless of the awful weather that everyone persisted with, the Club was rewarded by seeing the team win its 5th consecutive Championship Title.

Next up was the annual **Dave Wilson Kahuna**, we chose to host this event on the same day as the Club's 60th Anniversary Celebration, so again a huge shout out to **Cameron Rapley, Neil Forbes, Dawn Jones** and **Jeff Baker** for their efforts on the day as I was busy assisting with the Clubs 60th Anniversary celebrations set up. up last year, so we knew a couple of our youth members were heading out with something to prove. Luckily the Marine activity this year was quieter than previous. What a relief for everyone. **Brodie Lee** took out the win with a time of 55 minutes.

Our final event for the year was hosting the Woodside Nipper Qualifiers, which is held over two days, We engaged our youth members and many others to assist in running this huge two day event. A massive Thank You to all our members and their families who assisted over that weekend. Our Woodside Nippers got the opportunity to perform well on their home beach and they certainly did that. Our youth, senior and masters members did equally well in helping run the event to give the Nippers this opportunity. I'm confident the Nipper parents will return the favour when they get the opportunity to assist the Club in events in the future.

I'd finally like to take the opportunity to thank all of the members that I have worked with running events over the last six seasons, whilst in my roles as both GM Development and Events Manager. Together we have run some very successful events to cater for all of our members from Nippers to Masters. Its been hard work but a lot of fun as well. Thank you all.

The Ted Scott Marathon, we all know how that ended

Ted Scott Marathon briefing





COACHING SERVICES

Troy Baird | Manager Coaching Services

We are very fortunate to have such quality coaches who give up their time to provide exceptional service!

This season we fielded coaches across all disciplines and for all competing age groups. From pre-season conditioning, winter training, to pre-competition and in season. Our coaches are listed below.

Winter training has already commenced and we look forward to the 2022/23 season when WA hosts the Aussies in Scarboro next year.

MULLALOO COACHING TEAM

BEACH

Aaron Gigney Carl Mills Martyn Pigg Stuart Ketteringham

BOARDS

TIER 1

Carlo Tenaglia Andrew Mosel – Skills Coach Soraya Lee Harry Jones **TIER 2** Troy Baird Terry Smith

Louis Cheeseman Sarah Gregson

TIER 3

Simon Foley Clayton Millar

TIER 4

Jenni Wood Annika Rasmussen

TIER 5 & 6 Penny Fortmann

CONDITIONING

Cameron Rapley Troy Baird

IRB RACING

Cameron Rapley Clayton Millar Josh Bull Robbie Payne Todd Bartle

POOL RESCUE Annika Rasmussen

R&R, FIRST AID Paul Brierley

SKI

Brenton Rose – Coordinator Nathan Vartesi – Skills Coach Amanda Lee

SPRINTS/FLAGS

Jeff Davidson Sam Deans Aaron Gigney Stuart Ketteringham Carl Mills Martyn Pigg

SURF BOATS

Darren Protzman Duncan Gemmell Isaac Crothers Richard Canlon Sandy Clarke Steve Part Stuart Clarke Terry Upston

SWIMMING Joanna Foulkes

COACH AWARDS

We thank Jenni and Richard for their ongoing coaching support of the Club and its members, this season recognising 10 years and 5 years respectively.

10 YEAR COACHING SERVICE Jenni Wood

5 YEAR COACHING SERVICE Richard Calnon



Photo: © Wanderlust Flyer

MULLALOO SLSC 2021/22 ANNUAL REPORT 53



COMPETITION

Dawn Jones | Manager Competition

We had a great season where we saw an improvement in multiple areas of competition and our Club Developing well. We consistently achieved good results in all competitions. However, it's not all about results and what we have achieved is building a supportive and inclusive culture on the beach, the camaraderie and team spirit has been awesome. This has been accomplished in many ways, some as simple as team building in training and on Club days to taking a group of our senior competitors for a camp in Denmark. I think by the time we got to the Championships, we managed to get most of our athletes on a chair in the tent which was a simple goal we had set for the season to promote team spirit! This allowed for Team Managers Louis Cheeseman, Yvette Blackman and Terry Smith to keep on top of the competitors and along with coaches Troy Baird, Brenton Rose and Carlo Tenaglia, give them timely feedback on their racing. The muffins and fruit supplied by Nathan and Lauren Vartesi from Rise and Grind was much appreciated.

IRON SERIES

This two-event series was well supported by our athletes. There were different formats for each race day. The first round was an M format and **Brodie Lee** was our

most successful competitor with a 3rd place in the Youth Ironman. Round 2 was a triple sprint – doing the course 3 times! Brodie was again in the placings as was **Bethany Bamforth** both achieving top 3 positions.

SURF LEAGUE

Surf League was revamped and held over two rounds. It was open to anyone who wanted to enter and took away the team selection component with all the logistics of age group configurations making up those teams. Mullaloo finished 4th in both the Open and Youth competitions.

SURF BOATS

The boat group has been steadily growing the last couple of seasons. This year we managed to get 9 crews together at various points of the year, with covid and injuries we were able to regularly field 5 to 6 crews at most carnivals through the season. Building from the bottom is a priority so getting one U19 boys crew and two U19 girls crews is encouraging for the future. The Wizard's open mens crew started the season strongly with good results throughout the boat carnival to top the leaderboard to win the 'Mugs' series this year.

Looking forward, we hope to build on numbers and strengthen the boat division.





IRB RACING

The IRB 2021/22 season was completed back on June 20th 2021. The team was once again dominant throughout the season winning all carnivals. This form was taken into the state championships with the team securing their 5th consecutive state Championship. The team of 33 competitors delivered consistent performances across our Open Male, female and Masters teams with the most pleasing aspects of this result being the contribution of the developing crews stepping up winning finals and showing the future is bright in IRB competition at Mullaloo. The team ended up with a result of 118 points with the closest rival on 55.

POOL RESCUE

Annika Rasmussen is passionate about Pool Rescue competition and was the driving force behind motivating and coaching a group of Nippers and Youth. We appreciate her dedication and expertise in this section of competition. Results are tabled at the end of this report and within the Nippers section.

STATE CHAMPIONSHIPS

The State Championship season stretched over many weekends and encompassed a big range of disciplines. These being Endurance, Rescue, First Aid, Lifesaving, Youth, Open, Masters, Surf Boats, IRB's and Board riding. Mullaloo finished 4th overall, with a great 300 points, a result that we are really proud of. The goal is to close the gap on the 3rd spot and we are making good strides to attain this goal. We medalled in all championships and those results are tabled at the end of this report.

CLUB CHAMPIONSHIPS AND POINTS

The Club Championships were run a bit differently this season with champions being crowned for each individual discipline. This gave a much more balanced representation of the champions in their preferred discipline. The champions were presented with a towel so they can proudly show that they are a champion! The Points champion trophies were awarded through accumulation of points over three different Club days and included all competition disciplines. Results are tabled at the end of this report.

OFFICIALS

Our competition season also does not function without our officials. At Mullaloo we have a fantastic group of dedicated officials so our thanks and appreciation go to all of them as well for their constant hard work in making our competition season function. Our core group of officials include Marni Black, Alison Gerrard, Samantha Hill, Dawn Jones, Annika Rasmussen, Jesper Rasmussen, Vicki Rasmussen and Glenda Schulz.

Marni, Dawn, Annika and Vicki all took on Referee roles throughout the season. We appreciate all other officials (qualified or just roped in!) for their time over the season

Marni Black Sandy Clarke Leah Dineen Guy Edwards Alison Gerrard Samantha Hill Mark Hills Dawn Jones Clare Ketteringham Connor McComas Jacqui McGregor Annika Rasmussen Jesper Rasmussen Vicki Rasmussen Glenda Schulz Maren Scriven Alex Upston Terry Upston Congratulations **Connor McComas** on attaining the Core Official award this season.

OFFICIATING SERVICE AWARDS

25 YEARS	10 YEARS
Alison Gerrard	Mark Hills
20 YEARS	5 YEARS
Guy Edwards	Alistair Cook

CLUB CHAMPIONSHIPS

It was a good turn out for the Youth/senior /Masters Club championships on Sunday 6 February. Competition showed up some friendly rivalry! It was great to see so many people come back to the Club later on for the presentations. Towels were awarded to Champions – thanks **Mark Hills** for doing the presentations. Thanks too to **Marni Black** and **Alison Gerrard** who came down to the beach to officiate, and to the parents and supporters for stepping up and helping out the AGM's.

		2022 CLU	B CHAMPION	SHIPS		
	SWIM	BOARD	IRON	SKI	SPRINT	FLAG
U14 Champion F	Lilarni King	Tahlee Jones	Tahlee Jones		Isabella Biddle	Isabella Biddle
U14 Runner Up F	Tahlee Jones	Zoe Tinniswood	Lilarni King		Isabelle Mahon	Bree Stacey
U14 Champion M	Eoghan Barrowclough	Eoghan Barrowclough	Eoghan Barrowclough		Daniel Spies	Boston Marcinkowski
U14 Runner Up M	Tom Linehan	Tom Linehan	Tom Linehan		Lachy McAlpine	Daniel Spies
U15 Champion F	Beth Bamforth	Beth Bamforth	Beth Bamforth		Amelia Rowe	Amelia Rowe
U15 Runner Up F	Emerson Cheeseman	Emerson Cheeseman	Emerson Cheeseman		Elisha Archer	Elisha Archer
U15 Champion M	Brodie Lee	Brodie Lee	Brodie Lee		Jon Eady	Jon Eady
U15 Runner Up M	Declan Hewlett	Donnacha Murphy	Donnacha Murphy		Brodie Lee	Mike de Bruye
U17 Champion F	Jenna Stummer	Jenna Stummer	Jenna Stummer	Jade Bamforth	Leigh Kimber	Leigh Kimber
U17 Runner Up F	Leigh Kimber	Jade Bamforth	Leigh Kimber	Jenna Stummer	Jade Bamforth	Jenna Stumme
U19 Champion F	Katie Waddell	Neve Macleod	Neve Macleod	Leah Martin	Katie Waddell	Katie Waddell
U19 Runner Up F	Neve Macleod	Leah Martin	Leah Martin	Neve Macleod	Neve Macleod	Neve Macleod
U19 Champion M	Mitch Lee	Mitch Lee	Mitch Lee		Mitch Eady	Mitch Eady
U19 Runner Up M	Mitch Eady	Mitch Eady	Mitch Eady		Mitch Lee	Mitch Lee
Open Champion F	Soraya Lee	Soraya Lee	Soraya Lee	Soraya Lee	Soraya Lee	Soraya Lee
Open Champion M	Sam Wood	Harry Jones	Harry Jones	Sam Wood	Harry Jones	Harry Jones
Open Runner Up M	Harry Jones			Harry Jones		
Masters Champion F	Mandy Lee	Mandy Lee	Mandy Lee	Mandy Lee	Emma Bamforth	Emma Bamfor
Masters Runner Up F	Emma Bamforth	Emma Bamforth	Emma Bamforth	Nicole Jahn	Helen Gigney	Helen Gigney
Masters Champion M	Troy Baird	Jeff Vidler	Jeff Vidler	Troy Baird	Alistair Cook	Alistair Cook
Masters Runner Up M	Jeff Vidler	Troy Baird	Rob Barton	Jeff Vidler	lan Plummer	lan Plummer

YOUTH & SENIOR SURF SPORTS AWARDS

For the 2021/22 Season

CHAMPIONSHIPS GOLD MEDALLISTS

SUNSMART WA ENDURANCE CHAMPIONSHIPS

Open 2km Swim

Rosie Wilson

U192kmSwim

Rosie Wilson

U17 2km Swim Jenna Stummer

Jenna Stammer

U14 3.5 km Board Paddle **Eoghan Barrowclough**

Masters 45+ 3.5 km Board Paddle Sarah Gregson



SUNSMART WA FIRST AID CHAMPIONSHIPS

Open Edie Bushby, Sophie Mills



SUNSMART WA RESCUE CHAMPIONSHIPS

U19 Champion Lifesaver Neve MacLeod

Youth Champion Lifesaver Emerson Cheeseman

Emerson Cheeseman

Open Rescue Tube Rescue Soraya Lee, Neve MacLeod, Leah Martin, Katie Waddell



I to r: Emerson Cheeseman, Neve MacLeod, Lachy Bean, Jade Bamforth

S	UNSMART WA MASTERS CHAMPIONSHIPS
	0-44 2km Beach Run Brenda Campbell
	5-59 Beach Flags udith Harlow
	0-64 Beach Flags (ay Smith
	0-59 Beach Sprint udith Harlow
	5-49 Beach Sprint Nistair Cook
A	00+ Beach Relay Amanda Davies, Helen Gigney, Judith Harlow, anya Honor
	0-64 Surf Race eff Vidler
-	0-64 Board Race enny Orme
-	0-64 Board Race eff Vidler
	0-54 Single Ski Pam Bubrzycki
	5-69 Single Ski leil Forbes
	0-64 Ironman eff Vidler
	5-49 Ironwoman I mma Bamforth
-	0-64 Ironwoman enny Orme
	70+ Surf Teams racey Bartlett, Pam Bubrzycki, Jenny Orme
-	5-59 Board Rescue

Tracey Bartlett & Jenny Orme





150+ Board Relay Emma Bamforth, Pam Bubrzycki, Nicole Jahn 40-49 Double Ski Troy Baird & Nicole Jahn 50+ Double Ski

Pam Bubrzycki & Jeff Vidler

150+ Ski Relay **Pam Bubrzycki, Nicole Jahn, Jenny Orme**



58 MULLALOO SLSC 2021/22 ANNUAL REPORT

170+Ski Relay Rob Amos, Jeff Baker & Rob Barton

170+ Taplin Tracey Bartlett, Sarah Gregson, Jenny Orme

SUNSMART WA YOUTH/OPEN CHAMPIONSHIPS

U19 Beach Flags

Mitchel Eady

U14 Board Race Eoghan Barrowclough

Open Single Ski Jaime Roberts

Open Surf Teams Soraya Lee, Jenna Stummer, Katie Waddell, Rosie Wilson

2021 SUNSMART WA POOL RESCUE CHAMPIONSHIPS

U14 100m Manikin Carry w Fins **Declan Hewlett**

U14 35m Manikin Carry **Declan Hewlett**

U14 50m Freestyle w Fins **Declan Hewlett**



2021 SUNSMART WA IRB CHAMPIONSHIPS

Open Female Mass Rescue Rochelle Villemin, Sienna Lipscome, Teagan Cheshire, Aimee Honor

Open Female Teams Rescue Megan Bulley, Sarah May, Rzochelle Villemin, Sienna Lipscome, Caylin Robey, Aimee Honor

Open Male Teams Rescue Liam Rogers, Lachy Halvorson, Ethan Draycott, Taj Hawke, Caylin Robey, Sarah May

Open Mixed Relay

Aimee Honour, Caylin Robey, Josh Bull, Robbie Payne, Saul Williams, Taj Hawke, Andre Villemin, Ebont Millar, Rochelle Villemin, Sean Coventry, Lachy Halvorson, Aron Cook, Jayden Millar, Megan Bulley, Sarah May, Sienna Lipscome.

+35 Mass Rescue

Conan Millar, Rohan Cox, Jayden Millar & Will Ketteringham

+35 Single Rescue

Conan Millar, Rohan Cox, Jayden Millar

+35 Teams Rescue

Conan Millar, Todd Bartle, Clayton Millar, Edgar Coello, Ebony Millar, Teagan Cheshire

SILVER MEDALLISTS

SUNSMART WA ENDURANCE CHAMPIONSHIPS

45-54 2km Swim

Nathan Linehan

U17 2km Swim

Jenna Stummer

U152kmSwim

Brodie Lee

U193.5 km Board Paddle

Neve Macleod

U15 3.5 km Board Paddle **Donnacha Murphy**

45+ 7km Single Ski

Amanda Lee

SUNSMART WA RESCUE CHAMPIONSHIPS

Open Belt Race **Soraya Lee**

Youth Champion LifeSaver Lachy Bean

SUNSMART WA MASTERS CHAMPIONSHIPS

40-44 Beach Flags

Tanya Honor

55-59 Beach Flags

Helen Gigney

50-54 Beach Flags

Todd Bartle

55-59 Beach Sprint Helen Gigney

neich aighey

65-69 Beach Sprint Graham Deans



60-64 5	Surf Race
Jenny	Orme
65-69 E	Board Race
Paul B	ennett
60-64 5	Single Ski
Jenny	Orme
65-69 \$	Single Ski
Paul B	ennett
50-54 I	ronwoman
Nicole	Jahn
150+ S	urf Teams
Troy Ba	aird , Mike Bubrzycki, Jeff Vidler
60-64 E	Board Rescue
Paul B	ennet & Jeff Vidler
130+ S	ki Relay
Louis (Cheeseman, Mark Hopper, Nathan Vartesi
150+ S	ki Relay
Emma	Bamforth, Sarah Gregson & Jenni Wood
150+ S	ki Relay
Troy Ba	aird, Brenton Rose & Jeff Vidler
180+ Fe	emale Surf Boat – MARLINS
Rache	l Greene, Helen Grimes, Jude Harlow,
Rache	l Kremer, Stuart Clarke (sweep)

200+ Male Surf Boat – LIVIN' THE DREAM Stuart Clarke, Edcar Coello, Martin Fisk, Robert Galjaardt, Richard Calnon (sweep)





SUNSMART WA YOUTH/OPEN CHAMPIONSHIPS

U15 Beach Flags

Jonothan Eady

U15 Beach Sprint

Claudia Ketteringham

U19 Beach Sprint Caleb Mills

U15 Board Race

Beth Bamforth

U14 Ironman

Tom Linehan

Open Ironwoman

Soraya Lee

U17 Ironwoman **Jenna Stummer**

U 17 Ski Relay

Jade Bamforth, Holly Brown, Jenna Stummer

Youth Surf Teams Eoghan Barrowclough, Declan Hewlett, Brodie Lee, Donnacha Murphy

Youth Board Relay

Eoghan Barrowclough, Brodie Lee and Donnacha Murphy

U19 Taplin Relay

Holly Brown, Neve Macleod and Rosie Wilson Open Taplin Relay

Soraya Lee, Neve Macleod, Jaime Roberts



2021 SUNSMART WA IRB CHAMPIONSHIPS

Open Female Mass Rescue Megan Bulley. Sarah May, Corey Bartle, Taj Hawke

Open Female Rescue Megan Bulley, Sarah May, Saul Williams

Open Male Rescue Liam Rogers, Ethan Draycott, Aimee Honor

Open Male Teams Rescue Clayton Millar, Edgar Coello, Emmet Grimes, Sean Coventry, Aimee Honor, Sienna Lipscome

Open Male Tube Rescue Clayton Millar, Emmet Grimes, Ethan Draycott

+35 Male Mass Rescue

Andre Villemin, Edgar Coello, Ebony Millar, Teagan Cheshire

+35 Male Single Rescue

Alistair Cook, Ryan Robey, Caylin Robey

+35 Male Teams Rescue Alistair Cook, Rohan Cox, Ryan Stacey, Ryan Robey, Saul Williams, Will Ketteringham

BRONZE MEDALLISTS

SUNSMART WA ENDURANCE CHAMPIONSHIPS

35+ 1.5 km Beach Run

Sarah Gregson

U14 3km Beach Run

Callum Foley

U15 3km Beach Run Lachy Bean

35-44 3.5 Board Paddle

Joanne Bean Hannigan

45-54 3.5 Board Paddle Troy Baird

U19 3.5 Board Paddle Rosie Wilson

U15 3.5 Board Paddle

Lachy Bean

45+ 7km Single Ski **Nicole Jahn**

160+ Surfboats Party's Sore Oars – **Simon Brigham, Tim Buytels,**

Duncan Gemmel, Trevor Warland & Steve Part

SUNSMART WA MASTERS CHAMPIONSHIPS

40-44 2km Beach Run

Tanya Honor

50-54 2km Beach Run Amanda Davies

65-69 1km Beach Run

Paul Bennett

40-44 Beach Sprint **Tanya Honor**

50-54 Beach Sprint Amanda Davies 170+ Beach Relay Todd Bartle, Alistair Cook, Stuart Kettingham, **Conan Millar** 200+ Beach Relay Kirsten Dobson, Jennifer Gates, Helen Grimes, **Kay Smith** 30-34 Surf Race **Rhys Puchar** 40-49 Surf Race **Rachel Greene** 60-64 Surf Race **Mike Bubrzycki** 40-44 Board Race Joanne Bean Hannigan 55-59 Board Race Sarah Gregson 60-64 Single Ski Jeff Vidler 60-64 Ironman **Mike Bubrzycki** 50-54 Ironwoman Sarah Gregson 130+ Surf Teams Nicole Barrett, Kirsten Dobson, Rachel Greene 45-49 Board Rescue **Emma Bamforth & Rachel Greene** 50-54 Board Rescue Sarah Gregson & Jenni Wood 55-59 Board Rescue **Rob Barton & Mike Bubrzycki** 40-49 Double Ski **Emma Bamforth & Jenni Wood** 40-49 Double Ski **Troy Baird & Brenton Rose** 50-59 Double Ski **Mark Hopper & Jeff Vidler** 60-69 Double Ski **Jeff Baker & Paul Bennett** 170+ Ski Relay Jennifer Gates, Helen Grimes, Katrina West 130+ Taplin Relay Joanne Bean Hannigan, Kirsten Dobson, Jenni Wood 150+ Taplin Relay Emma Bamforth, Nicole Barrett & Pam Bubrzycki 170+ Taplin Relay Jeff Baker, Mike Bubrzycki & Garry Wood **SUNSMART WA YOUTH/OPEN CHAMPIONSHIPS**

U15 2km Beach Run

Leah Dinean

U15 Beach Sprint

Jonathan Eady

U19 Board Race Rosie Wilson

U14 Ironman **Eoghan Barrowclough** U15 Ironwoman **Beth Bamforth Open Surf Race** Soraya Lee U14 Surf Race **Eoghan Barrowclough** U19 Surf Race **Rosie Wilson** Open Beach Relay Mitch Eady, Aaron Gigney, Sam Leeks, Caleb Mills U17 Beach Relay Elisha Archer, Alyssa Calnon, Claudia Ketteringham, Hannah Wallace Youth Beach Relay Elisha Archer, Isabella Biddle, Claudia Ketteringham, Riley Quinn **Open Board Relay** Laura Edmunds, Soraya Lee, Neve Macleod **Open Single Ski Relay** Laura Edmunds, Mandy Lee, Jaimie Roberts U19 Surf Teams Neve Macleod, Leah Martin, Annika Rasmussen and Rosie Wilson U19 Taplin Jade Bamforth, Leah Martin and Katie Waddell **2021 SUNSMART WA IRB CHAMPIONSHIPS** Open Female Single Rescue **Rochelle Villemin, Teagan Cheshire, Aimee** Honor **Open Female Tube Rescue** Rochelle Villemin, Annika Rassmussen, Ayden Bartle +35 Male Mass Rescue Ryan Stacey, Ryan Robey, Annika Rassmussen, **Caylin Robey 2021 SUNSMART WA POOL RESCUE CHAMPIONSHIPS** Open Female 50m Freestyle with Fins Annika Rasmussen





MARKETING

Simone Truter | General Manager Marketing

Marketing Portfolio

What a season 2021/22 has been. Our Club, along with many other Clubs, has faced unprecedented challenges from tough government mandates to sheer Covid fatigue. But through it all, we have remained a proud and passionate Club celebrating our 60th year.

We are very lucky to have a faithful team of dedicated volunteers who have worked tirelessly this season to ensure that everything ran smoothly and that people remained safe and connected on the beach.

The Marketing portfolio is all about bringing people together. About Connection. About the Community. Now more than ever this is needed! We have all seen how important "buy local" and Community has become during these tough times.

The Team has worked hard connecting members with each other, and the community, through Club Communications, Social Events and Fundraising activities. Connecting through our valuable Sponsors, for which we are very grateful. Connecting on the beach all wearing our Mullaloo gear with pride each Sunday.

The Marketing team is made up of a committed group of managers and volunteers working quietly in the background. They have given many hours to the Club to ensure that the spirit of the Club is maintained.

Annika Crockford steadfastly remained on in the role of Retail Manager. She displayed great energy and passion wanting to provide more to the community. She introduced new lines into the Mullaloo Surf Shop and ensured, despite the delays in delivery, that the shop always had stock.

She was ably backed by **Penny Fortmann**, who was an incredible support to her throughout the season.

These two ladies are certainly a formidable team! Together they brought in a wonderful range of Mullaloo branded jackets, hoodies, T-shirts and accessories, as well as some impressive commemorative merchandise to help our Club celebrate its 60th year, all of which were quickly snapped up by our members.



One of our main aims is to support and encourage members, and we maintained this philosophy by continuing to sell all of our Club essential clothing, such as bathers and caps, at cost. This is an initiative that has been well received by the Club.

In a Club the size of Mullaloo, Club Communication is key! This is a very busy role and it crosses many different platforms, including a weekly electronic newsletter to all members, supported by social media posts targeted to a main page, as well as specific operational areas, such as lifesaving and the different surf sport disciplines.

Simon Roberts and **Simon Spencer** jointly took on the role of Communications Manager during the season, bringing with them a wealth of knowledge and experience.

It is certainly not an easy task to bring together a volunteer organisation with so much happening on a weekly basis. Especially with so many disciplines all with their own news to share. Members and the community rely on the Club communication being prompt and, in some cases, instantaneous! These communications are absolutely crucial to the smooth running of the Club and the team has done a great job this season managing a role that is so visible and which has such high expectations.

A special thanks to **Chrissie Payne** and **Sandy Clarke** who have been a huge support to me this season. Their knowledge, passion and enthusiasm are hard to beat. I am very grateful for all their hard work this season.

The lifeblood of any volunteer organisation is its supporters and sponsors. We are so pleased that **Brenda Campbell** remained in the role of Sponsorship Manager. She worked closely with our generous Sponsors over the season and has maintained strong links with all of them, ensuring our close relationships continue and our agreement obligations were all clearly fulfilled.

Mullaloo is proud to have such generous sponsors who have remained faithful in their dedication to the Club, despite these tough times. **Brenda** has worked behind the scenes, liaising with all operational areas and sponsors to ensure a mutually beneficial relationship.

Fundraising is a key way to support operational areas and interstate competition campaigns. Due to the number of disciplines that require fundraising, the Club has defined a simple seven step process for initiating fundraising activities to support and encourage all competition areas to coordinate efforts to raise funds for their campaigns. Check out the process on the website and get in touch with the Marketing team to find out how we can support your efforts.



Mike Gigney and Mike Fort (front)

Our traditional Club Sunday Sausage Sizzle was this year expertly managed by the dynamic duo **Mike Gigney** and **Mike Fort**. These barbeque brothers did an amazing job keep the hungry masses fed. Thank you to **Bully Butcher** and **Little Home Bakery** for all your support this season.

The annual SLSWA BeachSAFE fundraising campaign saw a team of the usual suspects hit the shopping centres and train stations to rattle the can at passersby, as well as a new online "Giving Day". Together we raised \$840.25. Thanks are due to all of the members who donned the red and yellow, giving up their Friday to support the Club.

Jeff Baker (I) & Paul Copeland (r)



Marketing supports the hiring of our Club facilities to both members and the general community and entails hard work by our Bar Manager, **Rob McGregor**, to make those special events successful. Thanks are due to Trevor and Rob for taking on the role jointly and for managing the bar operations in line with all COVID Health and Safety requirements this past year, it is much appreciated.

Chrissie Payne continued to manage the Memorabilia Group, and they have been working hard to make the Club filled with many special memories of the Clubs successes past and present. Together with **Cindy de Bomford**, they have created a fantastic relaxation corner in the Club Lounge complete with comfy couches and Club memorabilia to enjoy as you watch the beautiful ocean. This is definitely one of my new favourite spaces!

This season, we continued to work closely with our partners from **Swell** and **Boardies**, **Olivier** and **Cassandra Letrône**, who are part of the Mullaloo family. It has been a tough couple of years for the hospitality industry and we are so pleased that things are now settling down for them.

We are grateful for our key supplier, Nathan Pieters, from Marmion Liquor Barons who is a steadfast supporter and always willing to contribute to Club events. His support, as always, is very much appreciated. **Glenn Miller** and Wanneroo Isuzu UTE once again were integral in helping keep our beaches safe with a brand new ISUZU DMAX a key part of all patrols. Lifesaver 1 has been proudly in action during the 2021/22 season and patrolling members have enjoyed keeping the beaches safe, regularly driving this mighty vehicle from Pinnaroo Point to North Point. Isuzu UTE is offering some incredible offers for Mullaloo Surf Club members, and for every vehicle purchased Isuzu UTE will donate \$500 to SLSA. Contact the Sponsorship team for more details.

The role of GM Marketing involves working with virtually everyone around the Club on a weekly basis, but the role particularly relies on the efforts of our wonderful office staff. **Simon Spencer** has been an amazing support in the office throughout the season. His efficiency and cooperation is greatly appreciated. He understands how difficult it is for volunteer management to fit Club business into work and family commitments, so his flexibility this season was hugely valued!

I am very proud of the Marketing Team and all we have achieved this season. It has been a pleasure to work with such a wonderful group of people who give up so much time to further the aims of the Club. It has been a challenging year for all of us and we can only look forward to a brighter 2022/23 season!





SPONSORSHIP

Brenda Campbell | Manager Sponsorship

Our Club is a Not-for-profit (NFP) organisation and so it relies heavily on sponsorship opportunities to bring in much needed revenue. These last few years have been tough, and many of our members and the community have felt it. Despite this, our resilient Club has been fortunate to maintain its amazing sponsors throughout the season.

Each and everyone of them has made a valuable contribution to our Club.

We have continued to work hard to be able to offer our Sponsors a platform where they can showcase their products and services to a willing community who engage and support them. Behind the scenes, we work to ensure that all our sponsorship obligations are met, and that our sponsors truly feel that they are getting value for their commitment. After all, they are part of our Surf Club family.

Thank you to the **City of Joondalup**, **Wanneroo Isuzu UTE**, **ECU School of Business and Law**, **Woodside**, **Lotterywest**, **FINZ**, **Fresh Frontier**, **Lloyds Register**, **GKW Luxury Homes**, **ES2**, **ASB Marketing**, **Mullaloo Beach Hotel**, **Newlyfe**, **My Home** and **Matts Cats Bobcats Service**. Our Club is truly fortunate to be able to continue our fantastic partnership with these sponsors. Their support is invaluable.



The City of Joondalup has continued to support the Club throughout the year and the fantastic observation towers, with their excellent vantage point, have been well used this season.



Once again, **Wanneroo Isuzu UTE** proudly helped keep the beaches safe, with patrolling members driving the automatic ISUZU D-Max 4x4 dual cab - Lifesaver 1 - up and down the beach all summer from Pinnaroo to North Point keeping all of our community safe. **Glenn Miller**, the Dealer Principal of Wanneroo Isuzu UTE has been a huge supporter of the Club and we are hugely grateful to this amazing local business and his generosity.

With Isuzu UTE being a national Sponsor and Wanneroo Isuzu UTE being our local dealer, MSLSC is able to access some excellent deals for anyone looking to buy a new Isuzu. In addition, for every vehicle purchased, Isuzu UTE will donate **\$500** to SLSA. Contact the Sponsorship team if you want more information.

Despite the tough times our hard borders have caused for many universities, our relationship with **Edith Cowan University (ECU) School of Business and Law** continued to grow. Sadly, we once again had to put the BeSafe programme for international students on hold this year, but we know it will be back better than ever next season!

Thank you to **Dr Ruth Sibson** and **Janet Simmons** for their on-going support.

The **ECU Volunteer of the Month Award** has been firmly established and is very well received within the Club. Many excellent Club volunteers have been recognised for their dedication and commitment to the Club. Without them, the Club would not be the success it is!

This season by popular request, the nominations were opened up to peer voting through our newsletter and Facebook, and this has allowed a wider breadth of members to be recognised.

To all our ECU Volunteer of the Month Award winners, THANK YOU! This Club could not operate without amazing people like you!

Fresh Frontier continued with their awesome support of the Club, ensuring that healthy food became a way of life at the Club. Mike & Donna Leen sponsored the pre-cut onions for the sausage



sizzle every Sunday, as well as providing their delicious salads for players' teas and other functions where we needed catering, such as the official's lunches after carnivals. It was a huge success and our Nippers certainly enjoyed their players' teas with a healthy dinner option. We have noticed the range of Fresh Frontier products growing in the local supermarkets such **Mullaloo IGA** and we are happy we can support them.

GKW Luxury Homes actively supported the Club during the season and will continue to support the Club with their amazing information board that will be back in force next season. Thank you to **Greg Kelleher**, **Debbie Kelleher**, **David Wood** and team for helping to keep us informed, we appreciate your support.

Finz was a supporter of the Club through our swimwear purchases, donating money back to the Club. They took a step back in time and helped produce the Club's 60th retro men's swimwear – a true blast from the past!

Thank you to **Frederic Drouin**, **Andy Battle** and the team at **ES2** who continued to support the Club this season. We look forward to new and exciting things next season.

ASB Marketing actively supported the Club working closely with our retail team to provide the fantastic new Club Shirts and bring in some amazing casual wear designs. They also provided the Club with a much needed double tent for carnivals!

Mullaloo Beach Hotel returned as a Club sponsor, working with our bar managers to help provide the beer we serve at the Club. Next time you grab a pint at the bar, say a big "Cheers" to **Warrick Spratling** at MBH!

Newlyfe Simply Living worked with our retail team to provide us with an anniversary microfibre beach towels to remember! Lightweight and sand free they were highly sought after. With a special Mullaloo Beach image provided by the very talented **Robyn** from RS Photography – @rs.photo_ (instagram) they sold out fast!

The Club is aware of the importance our beach plays in the community, and that is why we strive so hard through the Access and Inclusion Committee to make it accessible to all.

This would not be possible without a dedicated team of people who keep the mat maintained and sand free throughout the season!

Thank you to **Matt Windle** and **Matts Cats Bobcats Service** who not only helped maintain the mat and keep it sand free, but also helped keep the towers stable moving sand around. He spent many hours with the team helping to maintain the mat using his impressive bobcat. We are very grateful.

Thank you to **Peter McCord** and the team at **My Home** who provided a welcome shelter for wheelchairs and pushchairs at the bottom of our fabulous beach mat.

The annual Street Appeal, coordinated through SLSWA, took place in on Friday, 3 December 2020. As it is a Friday collection day, it makes getting volunteers very difficult. A huge Thank You to **Rob Amos**, **Jeff Baker**, **Paul Copeland**, **Brenda Campbell**, **Glenda** and **Rob Schulz**, **Steph Draycott**, **Philippa Taylor** and **Neil Forbes** a huge thank you for giving up your time! who donned the red and yellow to collect at Whitfords Train Station and IGA Mullaloo.

This was combined with an online donations page called Giving Day in December, arranged through SLSWA. Together we raised **\$1,265.75** for our Club.

Thank you to the Community and **Grill'd Whitfords** for supporting the Club during the season and donating **\$300** to the Club through their amazing Local Matters Fundraising initiative.

Woodside, a State partner with SLSWA, support the wonderful Woodside Nippers program. They provided free Nippers vests, age group coloured caps, sun hats and a carry bags, which were handed out to all the Nippers at the start of the season. They also provided a huge amount of equipment to assist in the delivery of the Woodside Nippers Program and an awesome trailer to store it, which many of you will have seen on the beach during Club Sundays. We are grateful to Woodside for their support of such an iconic activity for kids, and for helping to turn our kids into future lifesavers.

Despite the Covid restrictions, our Club worked hard within the Covid Health & Safety guidelines to ensure that this season we were able to continue with some wonderful events which the whole Club could enjoy.

Thanks to **Realmark Whitfords** for supporting the Nipper Halloween Disco which is always a firm favourite with our Nippers.

Mullaloo SLSC relies on its sponsors and we are indebted to everyone who has supported us, past and present.

Thank you to the Marketing Team; **Simone Truter**, **Annika Crockford**, **Simon Spencer** and **Simon Roberts** who have been a huge support this season.

We can't wait for next season which all going well, will Bring Aussies to Scarborough! It promises to be an exciting year for everyone.



MULLALOO SURF SHOP

Annika Crockford | Manager Retail



We would firstly like to thank our wonderful Shop volunteers, we have a great team and without their support, we would not be able to offer the services in the retail Shop as we do to our members every Friday evening and Sundays. They have helped with pop-up stalls this season and the stock take. So, a huge thank you and appreciation to Livia Hawker, Adele Scala, Deborah Swan, Jenni Wilke, Patricia Colbourne, Rachel Kremer, Kathryn Harris, Ali Baker, Sasha Bushby, Glenda Schulz, Paula Alsford, Gemma Jones, Lisa Bergin, Marlene Colangelo, Renee Dineens and Penny Fortmann.

The last two years, our General Manager was **Simone Truter**. We want to thank her for the support, guidance, and input. We will miss her.

We had a Club focus group help us with lots of feedback from members on getting our new Club Shirt designed. It was an enormous task to find a design that would be suitable and cater to every Club member from U6 to Masters for all disciplines. We have brought in a selection of styles to provide a choice to all Members. The subtle kangaroo in the design was put in as a reminder to our members that it is in our emblem and the meaning of Mullaloo is the from the Aboriginal word meaning "place of the rat kangaroo".

Our Club shirt changes every three years, except when COVID slowed us all down, and every year we work hard with the provided feedback to provide some fun essentials to present Mullaloo in style at our beach.

A special mention goes to **Simone Truter, Dawn Jones, Alison Gerrad, Jason Heaton, Philippa Taylor, Sandy Clarke**, and **Simon Spencer** for spending many hours helping us create our new Club shirt. We wouldn't have been able to do this without your help, support and guidance.

This year marked an exceptional year, with the Club's 60th Anniversary. We had a memorable anniversary logo designed, which we used on a few items in the shop that the members loved and received successfully. We have had a great response from members this season on our causal range and the members were excited to wear the new gear. Many members received items from the shop as Christmas presents or were sent overseas to family.

Thank you to all the members who supported the retail shop this season. Our reward is seeing you all in the branded gear on the beach.

In the retail shop, we try to work closely on any feedback given to us to ensure we can do our best to bring in merchandise that will make the majority happy. If anyone would like to contact us, please don't hesitate to email retail@mullaloosurf.com.au

Our annual sales for the season were \$102,145.42.

Finally, a special mention to **Penny Fortmann**, your help during the season has been invaluable as always. Also, a special tribute to **Sasha Bushby**, who kindly assisted while Penny was away. It's lovely to have such a support team around me. Thank you.

Enjoy your winter break and we will catch you down the beach. Annika & The wonderful Retail Team.







SOCIAL ACTIVITIES

Group Effort | Manager Social Activities

The social events for the Club had their fair share of set backs from Covid, function and facility coordinator role vacated due to family illness, and lack of a Social Manager to coordinate the season's events. But, we have an awesome dedicated team of volunteers that banded together ensuring our Club's true spirit shone through!

CLUB 60TH CELEBRATIONS

The Club ran a Sunset Cocktail event in October 2021 marking 60 years of service. See page 9 for more details.

Alongside the Club's annual Ted Scott Marathon, all of Club sausage sizzle amid the



COMMUNITY SPIRIT

Our Club came together for another successful event in true community spirit of our AWESOME volunteers in aid of member **Lachy MacLeod**.

The Thrifty Treasures sale looked amazing with the whole Club lounge totally transformed into our very own second-hand store. Goods were donated goods from all our fabulous and kind-hearted members.

We had everything you could possibly think of; clothes, jewellery, bikes, games, artwork, books, homeware and so much more!

There were absolute bargains for anyone that entered the event and despite less than favourable weather, the Club raised almost \$1,500.

A MASSIVE thank you to EVERYONE involved; **Penny** Fortmann, Marni Black, Pauline Hopper, Kay Smith, Vanessa MacLeod, Rob McGregor, Jacqui McGregor, Gail Bennett, Helen Grimes, Jennifer Gates, Patty Colbourne, Dawn Jones, Stephanie Draycott, Tracy Cox, Joanna Foulkes, Emma Bamforth, Jade Bamforth, Bernie Flint, Cindy de Bomford, Vintage Clothing, Katrina West and all the other lovely youth parents who came to help.



We also thanked **Martyn Pigg, Lee Draycott** and **David Chadderton** who survived the horrendous winds and cooked up the sausage sizzle.

And lastly, thank you to ALL our members for donating their items and baking cakes to help us raise money, very much appreciated.

QUIZ NIGHT

When an event starts with heads and tails and "whisky pong", you know it is bound to be a good one.

The **Lachy MacLeod** 1st Fundraiser Quiz night was certainly a highlight on the calendar this year.

Not only an incredible evening of friendship, laughter, dancing and dress up, but more so a celebration of community and support for the Lachy family. We handed out prizes for Best Dressed Table, Bonus Questions, Dance offs, and other fun games.

Guests engaged in a live auction by Jeff and we managed to raise \$10,000.

A special thank you to Jeff Davidson and Dawn Jones for hosting the Quiz night, to Mullaloo Surf Club for allowing us to hold the fundraising events and to **Rob** MacGregor, Trevor Bulley, Natalie Godwin and Philippa Taylor who donated their wages from the Saturday night shift. Thank you also to the community for promoting the event and supporting a worthy cause.

HALLOWEEN KIDS PARTY

The members enjoyed another successful Halloween event at the Club.

Paula and **Jonathan Alsford** from Listed Estate Agents sponsored the event this year and have been great supporters of the kids Halloween disco over the last few years.

Lee and Nathan Linehan from MercerMooney donated carved pumpkins – which set the scene. A big thank you to our set-up crew: Penny Fortmann, Sarah Browne, Patty Wild Colbourne, Annika Crockford, Liam Harris, Kelly Marshall and some of the U7 Mums.

The Club's youth were also on hand throughout the event, thanks Molly Bean, Lachy Bean, Belle Bennett, Liam Harris, Ashlee, Ebony Millar, Claudia Ketteringham and LJ Alsford.

CHASE THE ACE

The Club's Friday evening (in season) Chase the Ace raffle was in full swing over the season with the various areas of the Club sharing the selling of tickets. We certainly had the suspense up when the Jackpot peaked and it had to be won – twice over the season!



ANNUAL DINNER

Another fantastic event put on by the Club, volunteers from all areas came together to get the sparkle on – big thanks to you all!

Master of Ceremonies, **Andy Jones** helped us to acknowledge and appreciate the wonderful commitment of our members this year, as well as the contributions of our sponsors and VIP's to the Club's successes.

It was heartening to have so many members nominated by their peers for different Award categories, not all could be finalists or winners, but our sincere thanks go to each and every member who was nominated, contributing to the myriad of operational areas of the Club.





MULLALOO SLSC 2021/22 ANNUAL REPORT 69



FACILITIES

Cindy de Bomford | General Manager Facilities

This season we have seen a few upgrades and changes with our building, starting with the full refurbishment of the first aid room with funds provided from a Federal Government Grant. Thanks to Nick llelamo and his team of helpers who helped with the process.

We also introduced the new Gallagher electronic access system which was a bit of fun to start with, but it seems to working very well and is a great investment to our building. Thank you **Kim Allen** for your continued support during this time.

This year we started utilising our Club much more for functions and have had a tremendous response from Club members and the general public. Thank you **Ewa Opiela** for your work in the first half of the year to get this up and going. We now have a double glass fridge in the storeroom which is proving to be a great asset, especially for the Sausage Sizzle Guys, **Mike Gigney** and **Mike Fort**, what a great job they did throughout the season, thank and your helpers so much for organising the sizzle on the balcony, it was a great success.

To our Building Committee, speared by **Greg Kelleher** and **Roger Gregson** thank you for all the work you have put in this year, they have been working hard on finalising upgrades for the downstairs bathrooms and toilets to be an interim upgrade until the City of Joondalup start renovations in around 3 to 4 years.

Our Clubrooms have also had a bit more life put into them, with the introduction of the Photo Display of State Champions and dedicated wall of photos to acknowledge our National "Aussie" Champions. To **Debbie Kelleher**, **Allison Gerrard**, **Anne-Marie Widermanski**, **Sandy Clarke**, **Barbara Loudon**, **Jeff Davidson**, **Mark Hills**, **Chrissie Payne** and **Christine Dargie** thank you so much and I can't wait to see the next project which is possibly the livening up of the Education Training Room with wall displays.

As always a huge thankyou to **David Cronk** our "go to" maintenance man, with his knowledge of the building and general maintenance skills he has been invaluable, also thank you to **Paul Beattie** and **Enda Farnham** who I have been able to depend on when Dave was away or unavailable, Also Board Members **Sandy Clarke**, **Chrissie Payne** and **Jacqui McGregor** who have helped me so much with this position, I've been very lucky to have such great back up and people so generous with their time.

Rob McGregor continues to work in the bar area ensuring a professionally run operation. Rob has been our primary Bar Manager this season managing stock supplies, ordering and working behind the bar with Bar Managers **Calven Je En Teng** and **Trevor Bulley**. Rob is responsible for coordinating Bar Managers,

staff and volunteers to cover our Club and functions requirements. This takes some serious behind the scenes coordination. This body of work supports the Club's venue hire for events and functions, an area which, post Covid restrictions, is again back up and taking on venue hire bookings. This is an area of continuing growth for the Club in the coming season.

Our Bar Staff roster volunteers do an amazing job ensuring members can utilize the lounge, balcony and bar area. Their ongoing support and rostered volunteer hours are greatly appreciated. Sincere thanks to Donna Harris, Frank Colangelo, Helen Gigney, Jacqui McGregor, Jeremy Fltzpatrick, Jo Bean-Hannigan, Mandy Lee, Philippa Taylor, Rob McGregor, Rochelle Villemin, Sandy Clarke, Scott Oswald, Shane Trainor, Tracey Bull, Trevor Bulley who together with our occasional Club member volunteers will also step in and lend a hand when needed.

It was fantastic to see the Club comply with rolling restrictions; adhere to mandatory requirements whilst maintaining a Club atmosphere. We continued to hold Club activities including our Players Tea and post carnival celebrations bringing the juniors, seniors and masters competitors together as one group. Chase the Ace on Friday Nights continued to bring people to the bar on Friday nights. Friday nights remain a popular night with people hoping their ticket gets called out. Sunday evenings attract a group of regulars who enjoy a weekend debrief with friends.

The Club's Annual Dinner was a huge success, celebrating a brilliant season and a wonderful finish to the year. It was great to see members and sponsors dressed up in their finery and enjoying a meal at the Club as we celebrated a night of presentations and our achievements. Congratulations to those members who received an award acknowledging their contribution to the Club this season.



FINANCIALS



FINANCE REPORT

John Hillen | Manager Finance

The Club has had another good year financially, with a year-end profit of \$152,169 and cash resources of \$781,957. This comes about, as always, with a constant monitoring of our expenses by both the Board and Managers, which resulted in this strong cash position at financial year end.

Main points from an income perspective:

- Bar sales, Surf Shop sales and lease income from the Swell Restaurant all bounced back to normal levels in 2022, as last years figures had been considerably impacted by COVID;
- Federal and State government grants totalling \$26,000, as well as a grant from Surf Life Saving Australia of \$15,000 were received in 2022 which were not received in the prior year. Distribution of funds from Surf Life Saving Western Australia of \$55,336 were also gratefully received;
- Our contracted service income from the City of Joondalup is always well received and in return they receive a lifesaving service on the City's best beach!
- The Bar traded very profitably with a net profit of \$70,344 on the back of good Club and non-club functions as well as good sales on members nights;
- Although Surf Shop sales were well up on last year, with very tight pricing (for the members benefit) and an increase in the cost of goods sold, it incurred a small loss, compared to last year. The Club has purchased a three year stock of Club shirts which impacted the profit margin.
- Sponsorship is down on last year with corporate sponsorship ever harder to obtain in today's current economic climate. There are, however, numerous, much appreciated sponsors which are thanked in the Marketing report. Their ongoing support of the Club is much appreciated;
- Pleasingly, our membership income continues to grow and was up \$16,221 on last year.

Main points from an expense perspective:

 In line with increased turnover, Bar staff costs were up \$12,991 on last year as more paid staff were employed to ensure good bar service was provided to the members and those attending our non-club functions;

- Due to **Swell Restaurant** being open throughout the year, there was an increase to our Lease fee payment to the **City of Joondalup** of \$16,667;
- The main increase in expenditure for the year was in the cost of our Administration function. Salaries and wages and associated on-costs were up \$63,205 on last year. As volunteers become continually harder to find, there will be a commensurate increase in our administration costs as paid staff are required to keep to the level of service as expected by our members;
- Club premises expenses were up \$13,568 on last year due to increased cleaning costs associated with COVID and increased maintenance to keep the Club premises in good working order;
- One of the major expense items under Administration is the Depreciation expense of \$103,148. This is a result of the capitalisation and depreciation of the capital assets purchased. It should be emphasised that this is a non-cash flow item, but does impact profit accordingly;
- The majority of all other expense items were either held at prior year levels or there were savings due to the close monitoring of expenditure by the various managers.

Assorted items of Club equipment totalling \$53,555 were purchased in the financial year. These items, each costing over \$5,000, were capitalised during the year. Although capitalised, they did however have an effect on our cash resources. These items included the refurbishment of the cabinets in the first-aid room, a complete revamp of the club's access system and a new all-terrain Rollator for beach access.

The Club is in a strong position financially, however, continuing diligence and oversight of our expenses is continually required to maintain that position.

My personal thanks, as always goes to the various hard working administration staff members. Thanks also to **Guy Edwards** and **Philippa Taylor** for assistance with the bookkeeping function.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 March 2022

	Note	2022	2021
CURRENT ASSETS		\$	\$
Cash and cash equivalents	2	781,957	632,376
Inventory	3	94,094	78,760
Trade and other receivables	4	31,779	28,318
Total Current Assets		907,830	739,454
NON CURRENT ASSETS			
Building & Improvements	5	1,870,388	1,871,512
Plant & Equipment	6	274,013	320,259
Total Non Current Assets		2,144,401	2,191,771
TOTAL ASSETS		3,052,231	2,931,225
CURRENT LIABILITIES			
Trade and other payables	7	60,666	85,470
Funds & Bonds received in advance		40,482	46,841
Total Current Liabilities		101,147	132,311
TOTAL LIABILITIES		101,147	132,311
NETASSETS		2,951,083	2,798,914
ACCUMULATED FUNDS			
Club Funds Brought Forward		2,798,914	2,657,106
Surplus/Deficiency for the year		152,169	141,809
TOTAL ACCUMULATED FUNDS		2,951,083	2,798,914

To be read in conjunction with the attached notes to the financial statements

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

For the year ended 31 March 2022

	Note	2022	2021
INCOME		\$	\$
Education Income		14,394	12,504
Entry fees & functions		36,417	10,054
Fuel tax credit rebate		584	
Fundraising & Sponsorship		48,998	95,231
Government Covid 19 Stimulus			59,000
Grants, Donations & Fee for Service		171,735	93,074
House/Bar Gross Profit on Trading	9	70,344	41,714
Insurance income		4,000	
Interest		47	182
Membership Income		268,549	252,328
Merchandise Gross Profit/(Loss) on Trading	8	(7,869)	4,762
Nippers and Youth Income		32,247	20,982
Profiton Sale of Assets		273	
Rental Income		288,682	183,569
Surf Sports Income	11		23,629
Watersafety fees & Vacswim		7,856	26,928
TOTAL INCOME		936,257	823,957
EXPENSES			
Bad debts			182
Club Premises Expenses		208,482	194,914
Depreciation and Amortisation		103,148	108,226
Education		9,526	12,021
Finance and Administration	10	216,720	150,843
Fundraising expenses		30,412	19,153
Lifesaving & PatrolExpenses		26,558	18,802
Marketing Expense		5,276	2,448
Membership expenses		45,099	44,682
Nippers & Youth Expenses		42,427	44,237
Surf Sports Expenses	11	46,441	53,307
Sub lease fee		50,000	33,333
TOTAL EXPENSES		784,088	682,148
NET SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR		152,169	141,809

To be read in conjunction with the attached notes to the financial statements

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year ending 31 March 2022

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements which comprise of the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2022, the Statement of Income and Expenditure and summary of significant accounting policies and notes for the year then ended are prepared for the purposes of fulfilling the Board of Management's accountability requirements under the Club's Constitution and the Associations Incorporation Act 2015 (WA). The Board of Management has determined that the Club is not a reporting entity.

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accrual accounting and are based on historical costs and do not take into account changing money values or except were stated specifically, current valuations of non-current assets.

The following significant accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation of these financial statements.

- a) Buildings and Improvements Buildings and Improvements is carried at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
- b) Plant and Equipment Equipment purchased in the 21/22 financial year is expensed as paid with the exception of capital items over \$3,000 in value which are recorded on the asset register. Items of plant and equipment and buildings are depreciated over their estimated useful life using the diminishing value depreciation method.
- c) Club Development Fund The Board of Management has established a Club Development Fund where donations intended specifically for surf sports development programs and equipment are held until required.
- d) Leases The main Clubhouse building (being Lot 15445) is located on Crown Reserve Land through a Head Lease between Mullaloo Surf Life Saving Club (Inc) and the Minister for Lands. This lease was signed in January 2014 for a 10-year term and two further terms of 5 years.

The Club has adopted AASB 16 from 1 April 2021. The changes result in all leases where the Club is the lessee being recognised on the Statement of Financial Position and removes the former distinction between "operating" and "finance" leases. The new standard requires recognition of a right-of-use asset (the leased term) and a financial liability (to pay rentals). The exceptions are short term leases and leases of low value assets.

- The above-mentioned lease is considered a "peppercorn" lease under AASB 16 and there is no impact on the Statement of Financial Position.
- e) Revenue Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable after taking into account any trade discounts and volume rebates allowed. For this purpose, deferred consideration is not discounted to present values when recognising revenue.

Grant and donation income is recognised when the entity obtains control over funds, which is generally at the time of receipt.

- f) Inventory Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost is based on a first-in, first-out basis.
- g) Employee Entitlements Provision is made for the entity's liability for employee's benefits arising from services rendered by employees to balance sheet date. Employee benefits that are expected to be settled within one year have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled, plus related on-costs. Employee benefits payable later than one year have been measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those benefits.
- h) Income Tax the entity is an income tax exempt charitable entity under sub-division 50-B of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997.
- GST Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Tax Office. In these circumstances, the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the expense. Receivables and payables in the assets and liabilities statement are shown inclusive of the GST.
- j) COVID-19 On 31 January 2020, the World Health Organisation (WHO) announced a global health emergency because of a new strain of coronavirus originating in Wuhan, China (COVID-19 outbreak)

For the year ending 31 March 2022

and the risks to the international community as the virus spreads globally beyond its point of origin. Because of the rapid increase in exposure globally, on 11 March 2020, the WHO classified the COVID-19 outbreak as a pandemic.

The full impact of the COVID-19 outbreak continues to evolve at the date of this report. The Club is therefore uncertain as to the full impact that the pandemic will have on its financial condition, liquidity, and future results of operations during 2021 and 2022. Management is actively monitoring the global situation and its impact on the Club's financial condition, liquidity, operations, suppliers, industry, and workforce. Given the daily evolution of the COVID-19 outbreak and the global responses to curb its spread, the Club is not able to estimate the effects of the COVID-19 outbreak on its results of operations, financial condition, or liquidity for the 2022 financial year.

Although the Club cannot estimate the length or gravity of the impact of the COVID-19 outbreak at this time, if the pandemic continues, it may have a material adverse effect on the Club's results of future operations, financial position, and liquidity in the fiscal year 2022.

k) AASB 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Club has adopted AASB 15 from 1 July 2019. The standard provides a single comprehensive model for revenue recognition. The core principle of the standard is that an entity shall recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The standard introduced a new contractbased revenue recognition model with a measurement approach that is based on an allocation of the transaction price. Credit risk is presented separately as an expense rather than adjusted against revenue. Contracts with customers are presented in an entity's statement of financial position as a contract liability, a contract asset, or a receivable, depending on the relationship between the entity's performance and the customer's payment. Customer acquisition costs and costs to fulfil a contract can, subject to certain criteria,

be capitalised as an asset and amortised over the contract period.

I) ASB 1058 - Income of Not-For-Profit Entities

The Club has adopted AASB 1058 from 1 July 2019. The standard replaces AASB 1004 'Contributions' in respect to income recognition requirements for not-for-profit entities. The timing of income recognition under AASB 1058 is dependent upon whether the transaction gives rise to a liability or other performance obligation at the time of receipt. Income under the standard is recognised where: an asset is received in a transaction, such as by way of grant, or donation; there has either been no consideration transferred, or the consideration paid is significantly less than the asset's fair value; and where the intention is to principally enable the entity to further its objectives. For transfers of financial assets to the entity which enable it to acquire or construct a recognisable non-financial asset, the entity must recognise a liability amounting to the excess of the fair value of the transfer received over any related amounts recognised . Related amounts recognised may relate to contributions by owners, AASB 15 revenue or contract liability recognised, lease liabilities in accordance with AASB 16, financial instruments in accordance with AASB 9, or provisions in accordance with AASB 137. The liability is brought to account as income over the period in which the entity satisfies its performance obligation. If the transaction does not enable the entity to acquire or construct a recognisable non-financial asset to be controlled by the entity, then any excess of the initial carrying amount of the recognised asset over the related amounts is recognised as income immediately. Where the fair value of volunteer services received can be measured, a private sector not-for-profit entity can elect to recognise the value of those services as an asset where asset recognition criteria are met or otherwise recognise the value as an expense.

m) Impact of adoption – AASB 15 and AASB 1058 were adopted using the modified retrospective approach and as such comparatives have not been restated. There was no impact on opening retained profits as at 1 July 2020.

For the year ending 31 March 2022

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Note 2: Cash and Cash Equivalents	2022	2021
Westpac Current Account	308,011	159,531
Westpac Cash Reserve Account	469,821	470,774
Facilities Card Account	2,325	271
Floats	1,800	1,800
TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS	781,957	632,376

3. Inventory

Note 3: Inventory	2022	2021
Merchandise at the lower of costor NRV	94,094	78,760
TOTAL INVENTORY	94,094	78,760

4. Trade and Other Receivables

Note 4: Trade and other receivables	2022	2021
Receivables	18,390	23,511
GST Receivable	13,388	4,807
TOTAL TRADE & OTHER RECEIVABLES	31,779	28,318

5. Building & Improvements

Note 5: Building & Improvements	2022	2021
Buildings & Improvements at Cost	2,123,395	2,079,733
Less: Accumulated Depreciation	-253,007	-208,221
TOTAL CARRYING AMOUNT	1,870,388	1,871,512

6. Plant and Equipment

Note 6: Plant & Equipment	2022	2021
Property, Plant & Equipment	508,349	498,458
Less: Accumulated Depreciation - Property, Plant & Equipment	-249,330	-197,655
NET CARRYING AMOUNT	259,019	300,803
Office Furniture	42,305	42,305
Less: Accumulated Depreciation – Office Furniture	-29,349	-26,110
NET CARRYING AMOUNT	12,956	16,195
IT Hardware	22,590	22,590
Less: Accumulated Depreciation – IT Hardware	-20,552	-19,329
NET CARRYING AMOUNT	2,038	3,261
TOTAL NET CARRYING AMOUNT	274,013	320,259

For the year ending 31 March 2022

7. Trade and Other Payables

Note 7: Trade & Other Payables	2022	2021
Trade Creditors	14,371	56,680
Provision for leave	3,708	4,630
GST payable	35,826	14,370
PAYG Payable	5,984	6,972
Super payable	778	2,818
TOTAL TRADE & OTHER PAYABLES	60,666	85,470

8. Merchandise

Note 8: Merchandise	2022	2021
Sales - Merchandise	86,355	63,873
Less: Cost of merchandise sold		
Opening Merchandise Stock	71,134	62,434
Purchases of Merchandise	109,968	67,812
Less: Closing Stock of Merchandise	86,879	71,134
TOTAL COST OF GOODS SOLD	94,224	59,112
GROSS PROFIT/(LOSS) ON MERCHANDISE	(7,869)	4,762

9. House/Bar

Note 9: House/Bar	2022	2021
Sales - Food & Beverage	161,697	92,479
Sales - Other	6,533	3,418
TOTAL SALES	168,230	95,897
Less: Cost of house expenses		
Opening Stock - Beverages	7,626	5,820
Purchases - Food & Beverage	97,475	55,989
Less: Closing stock - Beverages	7,215	7,626
TOTAL COST OF GOODS SOLD	97,886	54,183
GROSS PROFIT/(LOSS) ON BAR	70,344	41,714

For the year ending 31 March 2022

10. Finance and Administration

Note10: Finance & Administration	2022	2021
Accountancy, Bank & Legal Fees	10,144	3,173
Wages, Super and Employer Expenses	179,860	116,655
Office & IT	22,184	21,743
Memberships, licences & governance	4,532	9,272
TOTAL FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION	216,720	150,843

11. Surf Sports

Note11: Surf Sports	2022	2021
Competition & Events income		23,629
Coaching & Training expense	23,839	32,289
Competition expense	11,291	17,251
Subsidies & Events expense	11,310	3,767
TOTAL SURF SPORTS INCOME		23,629
TOTAL SURF SPORTS EXPENDITURE	46,441	53,307
TOTAL SURF SPORTS PROFIT/(LOSS)	(46,441)	(29,678)

12. Commitments

The leases held by the entity are charged at a peppercorn rate of \$1 per year and there are no other commitments.

13. Events occurring after the reporting period

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affect or may significantly affect the operations of the entity, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the entity in financial periods subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2022.

DIRECTOR'S DECLARATION

The Board of Management certify that the financial statements of the Mullaloo Surf Life Saving Club (Inc.) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022 give a true and fair view of the financial position and the performance of the association.

This statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Management and is signed for and on behalf of the Board of Management by:

Craig Bull PRESIDENT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

For the year ended 31 March 2022

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

To the members of The Mullaloo Life Saving Club

Report on the financial report

We have audited the accompanying financial report, being a special purpose financial report, of The Mullaloo Life Saving Club, which comprises the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the Trading Account and Statement of Income and Expenditure for the year then ended, and the Management Committee declaration.

The responsibility of the Management Committee for the financial report

The Management Committee of the entity are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report and have determined that the accounting policies used are appropriate to meet the financial reporting requirements of the constitution and are appropriate to meet the needs of the members. The Management Committee's responsibility also includes establishing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. No opinion is expressed as to whether the accounting policies used, are appropriate to meet the needs of the members. We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian auditing standards. These auditing standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by those charged with governance, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

The financial report has been prepared for distribution to members for the purpose of fulfilling the Management Committee's financial reporting responsibilities under the constitution. We disclaim any assumption of responsibility for any reliance on this report or on the financial report to which it relates to any person other than the members, or for any purpose other than that for which it was prepared.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

For the year ended 31 March 2022

Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Australian professional accounting bodies.

Matters relating to the electronic presentation of the audited financial report

The auditor's report relates to the financial report of The Mullaloo for the year ended 30 March2022 included on The Mullaloo Surf Life Saving Club website. The association's Management Committee are responsible for the integrity of The Mullaloo Surf Life Saving Club website. We have not been engaged to report on the integrity of The Mullaloo Surf Life Saving Club website. The auditor's report refers only to the statements named above. It does not provide an opinion on any other information which may have been hyperlinked to / from these statements. If users of this report are concerned with the inherent risks arising from electronic data communications they are advised to refer to the hard copy of the audited financial report to confirm the information included in the audited financial report presented on this website.

Qualification

As this is the first year that the financial report of The Mullaloo Life Saving Club has been subject to an audit and, as such, the comparative figures from the 2021 financial year have not been audited.

Qualified audit opinion

In our opinion, except for the effects on the financial report of such adjustments, if any, as might have been required had the limitation on our audit procedures referred to in the qualification paragraph not existed, the financial report presents fairly in accordance with the accounting policies, the financial position of The Mullaloo Surf Life Saving Club at 31 March 2022 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Charter Financial Services

Charter Financial Services

1

.....

Barry P Levin Partner

Dated: 11 August 2022

INDEPENDENT AUDIT OPINION OF FINANCIAL REPORTS

For the year ended 31 March 2022

CHARTER FINANCIAL

SERVICES A.B.N. 51 377 342 156

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS & TAXATION AGENTS REGISTERED COMPANY AUDITOR Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation Unit 9, 17 Foley Street Balcatta WA 6021 Tel: (08) 9226 5123 Fax: (08) 9226 5789 PO Box 1082 Balcatta WA 6914 Email: info@chaterfin.com.au



AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION UNDER SECTION 307C OF THE CORPORATIONS ACT 2001 TO THE DIRECTORS OF THE MULLALOO SURF LIFE SAVING CLUB

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 31 March 2022, there have been:

- (i) No contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the *Corporations Act 2001* in relation to the audit; and
- (ii) No contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

Charter Financial Services

BARRY PHILIP LEVIN Partner CHARTER FINANCIAL SERVICES Chartered Accountants

Dated at Perth this 11^{th} day of August 2022

Director: Barry P. Levin CA ANZ, Grad Cert Tax (Curtin); Post Grad Dip Tax (Curtin), H.Dip Tax Law (Rand), Registered Company Auditor No. 296904, SSA, SSAud Michael F. Ruddy CA ANZ, FCCA, CTA, BA (Hons) Sakhile Mbizwo CA ANZ (Affiliate), CPA (ASA), BCompt

Yours Financially-

A MEMBER OF THE CHARTER FINANCIAL GROUP

iours rinancially-

























BUILDING AND RENOVATIONS